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Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education
Cape May City School District
County of Cape May, New Jersey

Dear Board Members:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Cape May City School District for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 is hereby submitted. This CAFR includes the District's Basic
Financial Statements prepared in accdrdance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement 34. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and completeness and fairness of the
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of the Board of Education. To the
best of our knowledge and belief, the data presented in this report is accurate in all material respects
and is reported in a mannerdesigned to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of
the various funds and account groups of the District. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to
gain an understanding of the District's financial activities have been included.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in four sections: Introductory, Financial,
Statistical and Single Audit. The Introductory Section includes this transmittal letter, the District's
organizational chart and a list of principal officials. The Financial Section includes the general-
purpose financial statements and schedules, as well as the auditor's report thereon. The Statistical
Section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year
basis. The District is,required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of
the Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal regulations, cost principles,'and audit requirements for Federal awards
(uniform guidance); and Sate of New Jersey Circular OMB15-08. Information related to this single
audit, including the auditor's report on the internal control structure and compliance with applicable
laws and regulations and findings and recommendations, are included in the single audit section of this
report.

"To Acfiieye Exceffence in ?artneysftty a,itfr famify an{ Commun ity."
921 b.FAYETTE STRJET . CAPE MAY CITY, NJ 08204 . (609) 884€485 VOICE . (609) 884.?037 FAX

uisit rc on the web www.cncboe.org o e-mail secretaty@capemayboard.ory
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1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES:

, ,Cape May City:School District is an independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the
; :GASB as established by GASB Statement No. 14. All funds and account groups of the District are

included. in ;this teport. The Cape May City Board of Education and its school constitute the District's
reporting entity.

The District proVides a full range of educational services appropriate to Four Year Old Preschool
through Grade 6- These include regular as well as special education for handicapped youngsters. The
,District completed the2017-2018 school year with an enrollment of 168.1 students, which is 29
students',less the,previous yearrs enrollment. The following details the changes in the student
enrollment of the District over the last ten years.
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2. ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK:

One of the key objectives of the Cape May City's Municipal Government is to maintain the City's
environrnentaland historic quality by control of commercial land use patterns and adoption of
improved design and perforrnance'standards for land use in all of the areas regardless of whether they

, :are in,the historic district- idnother'objective-related strategy involves support for the continued
' existence.of the Coast Guard; fishing, and'tourism industries so as to enhance their important economic
: : contributions: The'City Council,and,Taxpayers Association continually meet to form a new vision for
: .Cape May that'would involve upgiading:structures and services to attract new visitors to Cape May.

,, Affordable housing, f,or farnilies hasidecreasedidramatically, impacting on student enrollment. As in all
. 

'Sou.th 
Jersey shore., oommunities, school enrollment remains flat or reflects a decrease which will

impact on budget concerns. 3
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Approximately three fifths of the school's students come from Coast Guard families who are based in
Cape May. The number of students is projected to increase coinciding with the increase in family
sizes. A strong educational partnership exists between the Coast Guard, the school and the Housing
Authority.

3. MAJOR INITIATIVES:

. :. Students:will be,responsible for rnaintaining records and explaining academic progress as

, ,, referenced in,Charlotte Danielson's Framework for Effective Teaching.

o, KQ grades: Continue to implement the Go Math program focusing on the technology
component Think Central.

3-6 grades: knplement the Go Math program for another year to maximize the potential of the
Go Math series; including participation in professional development opportunities.

a.

r Continue the implementation of New Jersey Student karning Standards: ScienceA.{GSS
, through the use of new curriculum materials and programs.

o A Reunification.Drill was conducted on November 2,2018, whereby students and staff went
, , into.a lockdown; followed by an evacuation, and reunited with their parents at a different
,, ,, location. ,Two years of planning was necessary in conjunction with the Cape May City Police

' ,Departrnent;,Fire Department, US Coast Guard, Cape May County Prosecutors Office, parents,
'., 'and the Cape May City.Municipality, Lion Bus Company, the Cape May City Board of

.' . Education, and the relocation site,management in order to plan and initiate the Reunification
Drill.

Our Mission Statement: "To teach and achieve excellence in partnership withfamily and community."
Our School Motto: "We,are'safe, respectful, engaged in learning, reflective, and joyful."

4. INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS:

,i , ' designed to,ensure that the assets'of ,the District are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure
' that:adequate accounting:data are cornpiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in
. : . conformity with.accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).
i The'internal control structure,is designed;to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these
,, ',;., ,objectives are.met.l The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (l) the cost of a control,

estimate and judgments by management. 4

a
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As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for ensuring that
an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and
regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure is also subject to periodic
evaluation by the District management.

As part of the Districtls single audit described earlier tests are made to determine the adequacy of the
, internal control structure, including that portion related to federal and state financial assistance

programs, as well as to determine'ttrat:the District has complied with applicable laws and regulations.

5. BUDGETARY CONTROLS:

In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains budgetary controls. The objective of
these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual
appropriated budget aprDroved by the voters of the municipality. Annual appropriated budgets are

adopted for the general fund and the special revenue fund. Project-length budgets are approved for the
capital improvements accounted for in the eapital projects fund. The final budget amount as amended
for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line item
basis. Open,encumbrances at /ear-epd,ale,either canceled or are included as re-appropriations of fund
balance in the subsequent year. Those'amounts to be re-appropriated are reported as reservations of
fund balance at June 30,2018.

6. ACCOUNTING SYSTEMS AND REPORTS:

The District's accounting reeords reflect generally accepted accounting principles, as promulgated by
, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The accounting system of the District is
, or+anizedon.the basis of funds and account,groups. These funds and account groups are explained in

"Notes to the Financial Statements," Note l.

7. CASH MANAGEMENT:

: ,'':. :The,investment'policy:sf 15e District,'is"guided in large partby state statute as detailed in "Notes to the
,Financial Staternents;" Note 2; The District has adopted a cash management plan that requires it to
, deposit public'funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the
,GoVefnmental Unit Deposit Proteclion Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect

, governrnental lmits from a loss of funds"on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey.
,.The law.requires,governmental units to deposit public fundsonly in public depositories located in New
, ,Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordancerwith the Act.
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8. RISK MANAGEMENT:

, 'The Board'carried various forms of rinsurance,:including but not limited to general liability, hazard, and
theft insurance,on property and'contents, boiler insurance, parent volunteer insurance, student accident
insurance.and fidelity bonds. Staff training of safety procedures is on-going and the district was
reviewed by the insurance company inspector for compliance.

9. OTHER INFORMATION:

State:statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants or registered
municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Inverso & Stewart, LLC, was selected by the Board of
Edrlcation. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit also was
'designed to meet the requirements of the Single Audit Act of 1984 and the related OMB Circular A-
133 and,New Jers'eyOMB's Circular 04.04. The auditor's report on the general-purpose financial
statements and combining and individual fund statements and schedules is included in the financial
section of this report. The auditor's reports related specifically to the single audit are included in the
single audit section of this report.

Respectfully submitted,

r/,;*n
Victoria Zelenak
Superintendent '

John

Administrator

6
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INVERSO & STEWART, LLC
Certified Public Accountants
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Fax (E56) 983-6674
E-Mail : rinverso@iscpasnj.com

-Member of-
Anerican Institute of CPAs
New Jersey Society of CPAs

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Cape May City School Distict
County of Cape May
Cape May, New Jersey

Report on the Ftnancial Statemmts

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund and the aggegate remaining fund information of the Cape May City School District, in the County of Cape
May, State of New Jersey, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the School Distict's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibiltty for the Financial Statentents

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these fnancial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the desigrr, implementation and
r4aintenance of intemal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Au dltor's Resp onsib ility

My responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits containedin Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Compfioller General of the United States; and
in compliance with audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of
New Jersey. Those standards require that I plan and perforrr the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or effor. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal confrol relevant to the School District's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to desigr audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the School District's internal contol. Accordingly, I express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness ofaccounting policies used and the reasonableness ofsignificana accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinions.

11



Qpinions

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Cape May Crty School District, in the County of Cape May, State of New Jersey, as of June 30, 2018,
and the respective changes in financial position and where applicable, cash flows thereof for the fiscal year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Requir ed Supplement ary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and
analysis, budgetary comparison information, schedule of the School Disfrict's proportionate share of the net pension
liability, and schedule of the School District's confibutions, schedule of the State's proportionate share of the net OPEB
liability associated with the School District and changes in the total OPEB liability and related ratios as listed in the table
of contents, be presented to supplement the basic furancial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part
of frnancial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. I have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquires of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to my
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge I obtained during my audit of the basic financial statements.

I do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide me
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
Cape May City School District's basic financial statements. The intoductory section, combining statements and related
major fund supporting statements and schedules, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis,
as required by the Office of School Finance, Deparfnent of Education, State of New Jersey and are not a required part of
the basic financial statements. The accompanying sohedules of federal awards and state financial assistance, as required
by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part200, Uniform Administative Requirements, Cost principles, and Audit
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), and State of New
Jersey Circular I5-08-OMB, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and'State Aid, are also
presented for purposes ofadditional analysis and are not a required part ofthe basic financial statements.

The accompanying combining statements and related major fund supporting statements and schedules and schedules of
expenditures of federal awards and state frnancial assistance are the responsibility of management and were derived from
and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and

other records used to prepaxe the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In my
opinion, the accompanying combining statements and related major fund supporting statements and schedules and
schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections listed in the table ofcontents have not been subjected to the auditing procedures

applied in the audit of the basic furancial statements and, accordingly, I do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.

Other Reporting Requlred by Government Audlting Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, I have also issued my report dated January 31, 2019 on my
consideration of the Cape May Crty School District's internal contol over furancial reporting and my tests of its

compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, confiacts, grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of



Other Reporting Required by Government Audlting Standards

In accordance with Government Audit@ Standards,I have also issued my report dated January 31, 2019 on my
consideration of the Cape May Crty School Disfiict's intemal control over financial reporting and my tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, confracts, grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of
that report is to describe the scope of my testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal conftol over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Cape May City School Distict's internal confrol over financial reporting and compliance.

INVERSO & STEIYART, LLC
Certifi ed Public Accountants

P. Inverso
Certified Public Accountant
Public School Accountant No. CS001095

Marlton, New Jersey
January 31,2019

13
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INVERSO & STEWART, LLC
Certilied Public Accountants

651 Route 73 North, Suite 402
Marlton, New Jersey 08053
(8s6)9E3-2244
Frx (856) 983-6674
E-Mail: rinvcrso@iscpasnj.com

-Member of-
American Institute of CPAs
New Jersey Society of CPAs

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER F'INANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AI\D OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

II\DEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Cape May City School District
County of Cape May
Cape May, New Jersey

I have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the
standards applicable to financial statement audits contained in the Government Audit@ Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, and the audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance,
Department of Education, State of New Jersey, the financial statements of the governmental activities, t}te business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Cape May City School District, in the
County of Cape May, State of New Jersey, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the School District's basic furancial statements, and have issued my
report thereon dated January 31,2019.

fnturnal Control Over Flnancial Reporting

In planning and performing my audit of the financial statements, I considered the Cape May Crty School District's
internal control over financial reporting (intemal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing my opinions on the furancial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School District's internal contol. Accordingly, I do not exfress an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Cape May Crty School Disfrict's internal control.

A deliciency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing theii assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on
a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's furancial statements will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
confiol that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance,

My consideration of internal control was for *re limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was
not designed to identiff all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.
Given these limitations, during my audit I did not identi$ any deficiencies in internal contol that I consider to be

material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

14
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Cape May Crty School District's financial statements are free
of material misstatement, I performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of my
audit and, accordingly, I do not express such an opinion. The results of my tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance
or other matters that is required to be reported under Govemment Auditing Standards and audit requirements as

prescribed by the Offrce of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of my testing of internal contol and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School Disfict's internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and
audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Departrnent of Education, State of New Jersey, and
federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities, in considering the School Disfiict's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose

INVERSO &STE\yART, LLC

bert P. lnverso
Certified Public Accountant
Public School Accountant No. CS001095

Multon, New Jersey
January 31,2019
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Management's Discussion and Analysis



Cape May City School District
Managementts Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

As management of the Board of Education of Cape May Crty, New Jersey (School District), we offer readers of the
School District's financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the School Disnict for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2018. We encourage readers to consider the information presented in conjunction with additibnal
information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found in the intoductory section of this
report.

Financial Highlights

' The assets of the School District exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by
$2,7 04,A9 fuet position).

Governmental activities have a deficit unrestricted balance of $525,826. The accounting treatments in
the governmental firnds for compensated absences payable, net pension liability, and the June state aid
pa)rments, and state statutes that prohibit school disticts from maintainlng more than2o/o of its adopted
budget as unrestricted fund balance are primarily responsible for this minimal amount.

The total net position of the School District increased by $452,189, or an 2l.Y|o/oincrease fiom the
prior fiscal year-end balance. The majority of this increase is attributable to the results of operations in
the general fund.

Fund balance of the School District's governmental funds increased by $508,307 resulting in an ending
fund balance of $2, I 8 I ,093. This increase was largely due to the results of operations in the general
tund.

Business-type activities have an unrestricted balance of $38,989, which may be used to meet the
School District's ongoing obligations ofthe food service and child care operations.

The School District's long-term obligations increased by $4,664, which is the result of an increase in
compensated absences and a decrease in net pension liability.

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an infioduction to the School District's basic financial
statements. Comparison to the prior year's activity is provided in this document. The basic financial statements are
comprised of three components: 1) Disfiict-wide financial statements,2) Fund financial statements, and 3) Notes to
the basic financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic
financial statements themselves.

District-wide Financial Statements

The district-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the financial
activities in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The district-wide financial statements include the
statement of net position and the statement of activities.

The statement of net position presents information about all of the School Distict's assets and liabilities. The
difference between the assets and liabilities is reported as net position. Over time, changes in net position may serv€
as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the School District is improving or deteriorating.

I

17



The statement of activities presents information showing how the net position of the School Distict changed during
the current fiscal year. Changes in net position are recorded in the statement of activities when the underlying event
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement
even though the resulting cash flows may be recorded in a future period.

Both of the disfict-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the School Disfict that are supported from
taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) and other functions that are intended to recover all
or most of their costs from user fees and charges (business-type activities). Governmental activities consolidate
governmental funds including the General Fund, Special Revenue Fund, Capital Projects Fund, and Debt Service
Fund. Business-type activities reflect only the Food Service Fund.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements are desigrred to demonsfate compliance with finance-related requirements. A fund is a
grouping ofrelated accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific
objectives. All of the funds of the School District are divided into three categories; governmental funds,
pr opr i et ary funds and fi duci ary funds,

Governmental funds account for essentially the same information reported in the govemmental activities of the
disfiict-wide frnancial statements. However, unlike the distict-wide financial statements, the governmental fund
financial statements focus on near-term financial resources and fund balances. Such information may be useful in
evaluating the financing requirements in the near term.

Since the governmental funds and the governmental activities report information using the same functions, it is
useful to compare the information presented. Because the focus of each report differs, a reconciliation is provided
on the fund financial statements to assist the reader in comparing the near-term requirements with the long-term
needs.

The School District maintains four individual governmental funds. The major funds are the General Fund, the
Special Revenue Fund, the Capital Projects Fund, and ttre Debt Service Fund. They are presented separately in the
fund financial statements.

The School District adopts an annual appropriated budget for the General Fund, Special Revenue Fund and the Debt
Service Fund. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for each of these funds to demonsfate
compliance with budgetary requirements.

Proprietary funds are used to present the same functions as the business-type activities presented in the district-wide
financial statements. The School District maintains one type of proprietary fund - the Enterprise Fund. The fund
financial statements of the enterprise fund provides the same information as the distict-wide financial statements,

only in more detail.

ihe School District's enterprise funds are considered to be a major frurd.

Fiduciaryfunds are used to account for resources held for the benefit ofparties outside the government. Fiduciary ,

funds are not reflected in the distict-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are not available

to support the School Disffict's programs.
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The notes to the basic financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full undersanding of
the data provided in the basic financial statements.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also contains other supplementary
information and schedules required by the New Jersey Audit Program, issued by the New Jersey Departrrent of
Education.

District-wide Financial Analysis

The assets ofthe School District are classified as current assets and capital assets. Cash, investments, receivables,
inventories and prepaid expenses are current assets. These assets areivailable to provide resources for the near-
tetm operations of the School District. The majority of the current assets are tlte results of the tax levy and state aid
collection process.

Capital assets axe used in the operations of the School Distict. These assets are land, buildings, improvements and
equipment. Capital assets are discussed in greater detail in the section titled, Capital Assets and Debt
Administatio& elsewhere in this analysis.

Current and long-term liabilities are classified based on anticipated liquidation either in the near-term or in the
future. Current liabilities include accounts payable, accrued salaries and benefits, unearned revenues, and current
debt obligations. The liquidation ofcurrent liabilities is anticipated to be either from currently available resources,
current assets or new resources that become available during fiscal year 2019. Long-term liabilities such as long-
term debt obligations and compensated absences payable will be liquidated from resources that will become
available after fiscal year2019.

The assets ofthe primary government activities exceeded liabilities by $2,664,268 with a deficit unrestricted balance
of $525,826. The net position of the primary government does not include internal balances.

A net investnent of $1,350,142 n land, improvements, buildings, equipment and vehicles provides the services to
the School District's 168 public school students. A balance of $1,839,952 has beenrestricted as follows:

Resnicted for Future Capital Projects
Restricted for Future Maintenance Projects
Reserve for Impact Aid
Reserve for Special Revenue (Deficit)
Reserve for Encumbrances
Reserve for Futuie Budget Appropriation

$ 963
100,098
700,013

(9,501)
ll7,4l2
930,967

Toal $ 1,839,952
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Comparative Summary of Net Position
As ofJune 30, 2018 andz0ll

ASSETS
Current assets

Capital assels

Total assets

Deferred Outflows of
Resouces

$ 2,131,966 $ 1,700,346 $ 117,542 $ 129,179 $ 2,249,509 $ 1,829,525

Governmental Activities
2018 20t7

281,750 386,479

Business-Type Activities
2018 2017

Distict-Wide
2018 2017

2,125 t,35t,714 1,383,245
131,304 3,6A1,222 3,2t2,770

t,350,142 t,381,120

, 3,482,108. 3,p91,466
t,572

ll9,ll4

281.750 386,479

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of
Resources

Net Position

Net Position Consists of:
Invested in Capital Assets

Resficted Assets

Unrestricted Assets

(19,437)
825,086
805,,649

54,442

L047,671
1,062,!13

78,553 70,267

78,553 70,267

59,1 l6 124,709

825,086 1,007,671
884,202 1,132,380

293,941 214,229

$ 2,664,268 $ 2,191,603 $ 40,561 $ 61,037 s2.
293,94t 2 14-229

704,829 -$ 22n,640_

$ 1,350,142

1,839,952
(525.826\

$ 1,381,120

l,0g6,g l0
(275-327\

$ 1,351,714

1,839,952
(486,837)

$ 1,383,245

l,0g6,gl0
(217,415\

$ 1,572

38,989

2,125

58,912

$

Nst Position _$ r,694261_ 
-{_Aul,ggl_

$ 40,561 $ 61,037 $ 2,704,829 $ 2,252,640

Governmental Activities

Governmental activities increased the net position of the School District by $472,665 during the current fiscal year,
thereby apcounting for almost all the total increase in the net position of the School District. Key elements of the
increase in net position for govemmental activities are as follows:

r Excess ofcurrent year revenues over expenditures in the amount of$508,307.

Business-type Activities

Business-fype activities decreased the School Distict's net position by $19,976. Operations of the food service fund
produced i ioss of$19,424 andthe Child Care Program produced a lois of$552 fofme current fiscal year.
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Comparative Schedule of Changes in Net Position
As ofand for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

Governmental Activities
2018 2017

Business-Type Activities
2018 20t7

District-Wtde

2018 2017
Revenues:

Charps for services

Operatinggrants and

mntributions

Property talcs

State aid

Tuition
Other revenues

Total Revenues

Eryenses:

Govemmental Activities:
Instruction

Tuition
Related services

Administrative services

Central Services

Operations and

Maintenance

Transportation

Employee benefits

Other

Business-Type Activities:
Opodions

Total Expenses

Increase (Decrease) in Net

Position before transfers

Transfers

Chanp in Net Position

Net Position July I
Net Position June 30

$$$

45

40,460

74,514

39,212

96,329660,564

1,804,282

1,987,533

2l,gtt
523

2,008,252

1,849,389

2,t00,677

15,61I

28,800

756,893

l,go4,2g2

1,987,533

2l,9ll
569

$ $ 40,460 $ 39,212

1,933,739

1,849,389

2,100,677

15,61I

29,755

5,928,170

46

4,474,813 I 15,019 135,587 6,043,189 4,610,400

1,735,990

I 12,400

462,510

219,245

90,008

396,402

52,533

2,393,379

3,039

1,686,255

122,621

470,087

175,805

88,190

388,374

70,351

1,t23,291

2,910

1,735,990

112,400

462,510

219,245

90,008

396,402

52,533

2,393,379

3,039

135,495 125,059 135,495

1,696,255

122,621

470,087

175,805

88,190

388,374

70,351

l,l23,2gl
2,910

t25,059

5,455,505 4,127,994 135,495 125,059 5,591,000 4,252,943

472,665 346,929

(18,500)

(20,476) 10,528

18,500

452,189 357,457

472,665

2,191,603

328,429

1,863,t74
Q0,476)
61,037

29,028

32,009

452,1897 2,2i?;640

$ 2,704,829

357,4577 t,gg5,tr3w$ 2,664,268 $ 2,191,603 $ 40,561 $ 61,037

Financial Analysis of the Governmental Funds

As noted earlier, the School District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.

Governrnental Funds - The focus of the School Disfrict's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the School Distict's
financing requirements. In particular, unassigred fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net
resources available for spending at the end ofthe fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the School District's govenrmental funds reported a combined ending fund
balance of $2,181,093, an increase of $508,307 in comparison with the prior year.

The unreserved fund balance for the School District at the end of the fiscal year includes a combination of
unreserved fund balance for the General Fund of $341,141, and a deficit unreserved fund balance of ($9,501) for the
Special Revenue Fund. The remainder of the fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new
spending because it has already been committes: l) appropriated as a revenue source in the subsequent year's

21



aid $700,013 or 5) reserved for encumbrances $l17,412. The general fund is the chief operating fund of the School
District.

The balance in the umeserved fund balance is limited primarily, due to the accounting treatrnent of the June state aid
payments and state statutes that prohibit New Jersey school districts from maintaining more tban2o/o of its adopted
budget as unreserved fund balance.

Revenue in the special revenue fund is generally recognized at the time that the outlays are identified; therefore, no
fund balances are normally generated.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

There was no difference between the original budget and the final amended budget.

At the end of the current fiscal yem, unreserved fund balance (budgetary basis) of the general fund was $391,904,
while total fund balance (budgetary basis) was $2,241,208. As a measure of the general fund's liquidity, it may be
useful to compare both unreserved fund balance (budgetary basis) and total fund balance (budgetary basis) to iotal
general fund expenditures. Actual (budgetary basis) expenditures of the General Fund including other financing
uses amounted to $3,960,950. Unassigrred fund balance (budgetary basis) represents 9.89% of expenditures while
total fund balance (budgetary basis) represents 56.58% of that sarne amount.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

The School District's investnent in capital assets for its govemmental activities as of June 30, 2018, totaled
$1,351,714 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, improvements,
buildings and equipment. The total decrease in the District's investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year
was $31,531 or a2.28o/o decrease.

Major capital assets events during the curent fiscal year included the following:

o Depreciation expense for the current fiscal year was $61,312
o Fixed asset additions totaling 929,781

Capital Asset (net of accumulated depreciation)
June 30, 2018 and20l7

2018 2018 2017 20r8

$ 540,600 $ 538,500 $

720t 20t7

$ 540,600 $ 538,500Land
Site Improvements
Building and Building

Improvements
Equipment

$

728,408
81,134

780,816
61,804 1,572 2,t25

728,408
82,706

780,816
63,929

Total $ 1,350,142 $ 1,381,t20 $ 1,572 s 2,t25 _$_1,1!.!t!1_ $ 1,383,245

Additional information on the School District's capital assets can be found in the notes to the basic financial
statements (Note 5) ofthis report.
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Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

For the 2018-2019 school year, the School Distict was able to sustain its budget through the tax levy, federal aid,
state aid, and miscellaneous revenue sources. One of the most important factors affbcting the School District's
budget is the amount of state aid it will receive in comparison to its enrollment. The 2018-2019 budget was adopted
based no change in aid from the State of New Jersey and no increase in school property taxes. The School District
continues to examine its costs in an effort to prevent additional burden on the taxpayers.

Requests for Information

This financial report is desigrred to provide a general overview of the School District's finances for all those with an
interest in the School Distict. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for
additional financial information should be addressed to the Cape May Crty School Disfict Business Adminisffator,
921Lafayette Street, Cape May, New Jersey, 08204.
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A-1
CAPE MAY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2018

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities Total

ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables, net
lnventory
Restricted Assets:

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
CapitalAssets, net (Note 5)

TotalAssets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURGES:
Deferred outflows of resources from pensions

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable

Related to Pensions
Other

lnternal Balances
Unearned Revenue
Noncurrent Liabilities:

Due beyond one year

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURGES:
Deferred lnflows of resources from pensions

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION:
Net lnvestment in CapitalAssets
Restricted for:

Special Revenue Fund
CapitalProjects
Other Purposes

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

$ 1,234,217
96,961

800,888
1,350,',142

109,900
4,151
3,491

1,572

$ 1,344,117
101,012

3,491

800,888
1,351,714

$

3,482,108 1',19,114 3,601,222

281 750

3,763,858

281 750

3,882,972119 114

78,475
78

29,690
29,348

(78,475)

825,086

29,690
29,348

78

825,086

805,649 78,553 884,202

293,941 293,941

1,099,590 78,553 1,178,143

1,350,142

(9,501)
963

1,849,490
(525.826)

$ 2,664.268

1,572

. 38,98e

$ 40,561

1,351,714

(9,501)
963

1,848,490
(486,837)

$ 2,704829

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Expenses

$ 1,462,681
117,852
'155,457

112,400
462,510
't42,U7
77,198
90,008

396,402
52,533

2,383,378
3.O39

5.455.505

15,328
120,167
135,49s

Charges for
Services

$

't4,774
25,686
40_460

Governmental
Activities

$ (1,284,032)
(115,747)
(155,4s7)

(55,391)
(454,530)
(142,0471

(77,1e8)
(s0,008)

(377,569)
(52,533)

(714,2',t6)
(3,039)

(3,521,767\

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Chanqes in Net Position

Business-type
Activities

$ $

A-2

Total

(1,284,032)
(11s,747)
(15s,457)

(55,3s1)
(454,530)

{142,0471
(77,198)
(90,008)

(377,569)
(52,s33)

(714,216)
(3,03s)

(3,521,7671

CAPE MAY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Ac{ivities

Forthe Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Proqram Revenues
Operating
Grants and

Contributions

N\t

Functions/Programs

Governmental activities:
lnstrucfion:

Regular
Special education
Other instruciion

Support Seruices:
Tuilion
Student & instruclion related services
General administrative seruices
School administrative services
Central services
Plant operations and maintenance
Pupil transportation
Employee benefits

Unallocated depreciation and amortization
Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Child Care Program
Food Seruice
Total business-type ac{ivities

Total primary government

$ 178,649
2,',t05

57,009
7,980

18,833

1,669,162

1.933.738

74.5',14

74.514

$ 5.591.000 _$_19d99_

General rcvenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes for general purposes

Federal and State Aid noi restricled
Tuition Fees
Miscellaneous Income
Transfer

Total general revenues and transfers
Change in Net Position

Net Position-July 1

Net Position-June 30

$ 2.008.252 $ (3.521.76n $ (20.521) $ (3.542.288)

1,849,389

2,100,677
15,611
28,755

3.994.432
472,665

2,191,603

_$____a994,268_

(5s4)
(19.967)

eo.521l

45

45
(2O,476)

61.037
_$_1!891_

(554)
(19,967)
(20,s211

1,849,389
2,100,677

15,611
28,800

3,994,477
452,189

2,252,UO
s__Jru@_

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral pad of this statement.
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General
Fund

Special
Revenue

Fund

Capital
Projecls

Fund

Debt
Service

Fund

B-t

Total
Governmental

Funds

CAPE MAY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
June 30, 2018

ASSETS

Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables, net
lnterfund Receivables, net
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

L]ABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
lnterfund Payables, nel

Total liabilities

Fund Balances:
Restric'ted for:

Capital Reserve
Maintenance Reserve
lmpact Aid Reserve

Committed Fund Balance
Year End Encumbrances

Assigned to:
Subsequent Yea/s Expenditures

Unassigned

s 2,2',t3,282 $ 65,874 $ 11,196 $

$ 1,223,021
6,086

183,287
800,888

65,874
$ $ 11,196 $ $ 1,234,217

71,960
183,287
800,888

$ 2,290,3s2

22,837 6,511
68,864 11,047

29,348
79.91',l

22,837 75.375 11.047 109.259

814
100,098
700,013

117,412

930,967

,331,789

2,181,093

814
100,098
700,01s

117,412

930,967
341.141 (9.501) 149

Total Fund Balances 2.190.445 (9.s01) 149

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 2,213,282 $ 65,874 $ 11,196 $

Amounts reported for governmental aclivities in the statement of net position
(A-1) are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the funds. The cost ofthe assets is
$3,815,398 and the accumulated depreciation is $2,465,256. 1,3s0,142

Accounts payable related to the April 1,2019 required PERS
contribution that is not to be liquidated with curent financial resources. (2e,6e0)

The District's proportionate share of net pension assets and liabilities
as well as pension-related deferred outflows and deferred inflows of
resgur@s are recognized in the government-wide statements and include:
Defened Outllows of resources from Pensions 281,750
Net Pension Liability (657,449)
Deferred lnflows of resources from Pensions (293,941) (669,640)

Long-term liabilities, including cornpensated absences, are not due and payable
in the current period and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the
funds. (167,637)

Net position of governmental activities $ 2,664,268

The accnmpanying Notes to lhe Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CAPE MAY GITY SCHOOL DISTRTCT
Statement of Revenues, Expendltures and Chang€ ln Fund Balance€

Governmental Funds
for the Flscal Year Ended June 30, 20{8

General
Special

Revenue
Fund

Capital
Projects

Fund

Debt
Service

Fund

B-2

Tohl
Gov€mmental

Funds
REVENUES:
Local sources:
Local tax leny
TuiUon charges
lmpactAid rcserve - intereEt
Maintenance reserve - interest
Miscellaneous

Totial revenues-local sources

Stiate sources
Federal sources

Total revenues

EXPEilDITURES:
Cunent expense:

Regular instruc{ion
Special education instruction
O'ther instruction
Support services and undisfibuted cosF:
Tuition
Student & instruction related services
General administrative seMces
School administrative services
Centsal seruices
Plant operations and maintenance
Pupil transportation
Unallocated emplolree benefi F

Capihl outlay

Tohl oxpenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers out

Tobl other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balances, July 1

Fund balances, June 30

3,960,950 284,876

$ 1,849,389
15,611

11

10
28,734

$ $ s $ 1,849,389
15,611

11

10
28,7U

1,893,755

1,035,418
1,542,814

s2,128
189,869

149

1,893,755

1,127,695
1.732.683

4,471,987

1,228,412
115,747
155,457

55,391
454,530
135,972
77,198
90,008

337,913
52,533

1,197,466
60.323

28't,997 149 4.7il,133

178,649
2,105

57,009
7,980

1,407,061
117,852
155,457

20,300
18,833

112,400
462,510
135,972
77,198
90,008

337,913
52,533

1,217,766
79,156

4,245,826

511,037 Q.8791 149

511,037 (2,879)
(6,6221

$ 2.190,445 $ (e,501) $149$

The acompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

149 508,307
1,672,786

$ 2,181,093
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CAPE MAY CITYSCHOOL DISTRICT
Reconciliation of the Statement of Reyenuos, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities

for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

(60,759)
29,781

B-3

$ 508,307

(30,s78)

8,425

(13,089)

s 472,665

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds (from B-2)

Amounts reported for governmental ac{ivities in the statement of activities (A-2)
are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in the governmental funds as expenditures.
However, on the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated
over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount
by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current fiscal year.

Depreciation expense
Capitaloutlay

Net differences between pension system contributions recognized in the fund statement
of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances and the statement of activities.

ln the statement of activities, certain operating expenses, e,9., compensated
absences (vacations) are measured by the amounts earned during the
year. ln the govemmentral funds, however, expenditures for these items
are reported in the amount of financial tesources used (paid). When the
eamed amount exceeds the paid amount, the difference is a reduction in
the reconciliation (-); when the paid amount exceeds the eamed amount
the difference is an addition to the reconciliation (+).

Ghange in position of govemmental activities

$

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statemenb are an integral part of this statement.
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8.4

CAPE MAY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2018

Busi Activities

Proqram Program Total
ASSETS:

Curent Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable
lnventories

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Equipment
Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Unearned Revenue
lnterfund Payable

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Net lnvestment in Capital Assets
Unrestricted

$ 8,639 $ 101,261
4,151
3,491

$ 109,900
4,151
3,491

8,639 108,903 117,542

9,964
(8.392)

9,964
(8.392)

572 1,572

$ 8,639 $ 110,475 $ 119,114

8,560
78

69,915 78,475

8,560 69,993 78,553

78

79
1,572

38,910
1,572

38,989

Total Net Position $ 79$ 40,482 $ 40,561

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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B-5

CAPE MAY CITYSCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Ghanges in Fund Position

Proprietary Funds
forthe Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Child Care
Proqram

Food Service
Program Total

Operating revenues:
Charges for services:

Daily sales-reimbursable programs
Daily sales-non-reimbursable programs
Special functions
Program fees
Miscellaneous
Donations

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses:
Salaries
Employee benefits
Supplies and materials
Depreciation
Repairs and maintenance
Other purchased services
Miscellaneous '

Cost of sales - reimbursable programs
Cost of sales - nonreimbursable programs

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoirerati ng revenues (expenses) :

State sources:
State school lunch program

Federal sources:
National school lunch program
National school breakfast program
U.S.D.A. commodities

Local sources:
lnterest revenue

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Net income (loss) before transfers

Operating transfers in

Change in net position

$$$ 21,695
3,976

15

21,695
3,976

15

6,974
7,800

6,974
7,800

14,774 25,686 40,460

14,239
1,089

35,810
2,739

299
553

3,724
38,254

349
36,909

1,530

50,049
3,828

299
553

3,724
38,254

349
36,909

1,530

15,328 120,167 135,495

(554) (94,481) (95,035)

995

39,805
25,408

8,306

43

995

39,805
25,408
8,306

45

2 74,557 74,559

(552) (19,924) (20,476)

(552)

631

(19,924)

60,406

(20,476)

61,037Total net position - July 1,2017

Totalnet position - June 30,2018 $ 79$40,482$40,561

The accompanying Notes to Financial$tatements are an integral part of this statement.
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CAPE MAY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Gash Flows

Proprietary Funds
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Business-type Activities
Child Care
Program

Food Service
Proqram

Gash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers
Payments to employees
Payments to suppliers

Net cash used for operating activities

Gash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers to other funds
Cash received from state and federal reimbursements

Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities

Gash flows from capital activities:
Purchases of fixed assets

Cash flows from investing activities:
lnterest and dividends

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Balances - July 1, 2016

Balances - June 30,2017

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided
(used) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net

cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation
Federal commodities
(lncrease) decrease in inventories
lncrease/(decrease) in interfund payable
lncrease/(decrease) in unearned revenue

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

$ 101,261 $ 109,900

$ (554) $ (e4,481) $ (e5,035)

$ 6,974 $ 24,970

(34,695)

3',1,944

(34,695)

$

6,974 (9,725) (2,7s',t\

(68,441)
69,559

(68,441)
69,559

118 1181

2 43 45
2 43 45

6,976

1,663

$ 8.639

(8,564)

109,825

(1,588)

'111,499

553
8,306

64
76,549

(716)

553
8,306

64
84,077

(716)
7,528

7,528 84,756 92.284

$ 6,974 $ (9,725) $ (2,751)

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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B-7
CAPE MAY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2018

Unemployment
Compensation

lnsurance
Trust

Agency
Fund

ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $11 674 $ 50,321

TotalAssets $ 11,674 $ 50,321

LIABILITIES:
Payroll Deductions Payable
Accounts Payable
lnterfund Payable

25,420

24,901

Total Liabilities $ 50,321

NET POSITION:
Held in Trust for Unemployment

Claims and Other Purposes $ 11,674

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CAPE MAY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

B-8

Unemployment
Compensation

lnsurance
Trust

$ 14,914
14 914

14,914

10,970
10,970

3,944

7 730

ADDITIONS:
Contributions:

Employee contributions
Total Contributions

lnvestment earnings:
lnterest
Net investment earnings

Totaladditions

DEDUCTIONS:
Unemployment claims

Totaldeductions

Change in net position

Net Position - July 1 ,2017

Net Position - June 30,2018 $ 11,674

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Cape May City School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

I. ST]MMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity - The Cape May Crty School Disfict @isfiict) is a Type II school district located in Cape May County,
New Jersey and covers an area of approximately one square mile. As a Tlpe II school disfiict, it functions independently
through a Board of Education. The Board is comprised of nine members elected to three-year terms. These terms are
staggered so that tlree member's terms expire each year. The purpose of the Distict is to provide educational services for
all of Cape May City's students in grades K through 6. Students in grades 7 through 8 attend Richard Teitleman Middle
School. Students in grades 9 through 12 attend Lower Cape May Regional High School. The Cape May Crty School
District has an approximate enrollment at June 30, 2018 of 168 students.

The primary criteria for including activities within the School District's reporting entity, as set forth in Section 2100 of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Codi/ication of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting
Standards is the degree of oversight responsibility maintained by the School Distict. Oversight responsibility includes
financial interdependency, selection of governing authority, desigration of management, ability to sigrrificantly influence
operations and accountability for fiscal matters. The combined financial statements include all funds of the School district
over which the Board exercises operating control.

Component Units - GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity and GASB Statement No. 39, Determining
Whether Certain Organizations are Component Unit, provide guidance that all entities associated with a primary
government are potential component units and should be evaluated for inclusion in the financial reporting entity. A
primary government is financially accountable not only for the organizations that make up its legal entity, but also for
legally separate organizations that meet the criteria established by GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 39. h addition,
GASB Statement No. 61, provides additional guidance for organizations that do not meet the financial accountability
criteria for inclusion as component units'but that nevertheless should be included because the primary government's
management determines that ii would be misleading to exclude them. GASB Statement No. 80, Blending Requirements for
Certain Component Units - an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 14 amends the blending requirements for the financial
statement presentation of component units of all state and local govemments. The additional criteria require blending of a
component unit incorporated as a not-for-profit corporation in which the primary glvernment is the sole corporate member.
There were no additional entities required to be included in the reporting entity under the criteria as described above.

Furthermore, the School District is not includable in any other reporting entity on the basis of such criteria.

Basis of Prespntation

The basic financial statements of the School District have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to govenrmental units. The Govemmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial
reporting principles. The more gignificant of the School Districfs accounting policies are described below

The School Disfiict's basic financial statements consists of government-wide statements, including a statement of net
position and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements, which provide a more detailed level of financial
information.

Government-wide Statements - The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information
about the School District as a whole. These statements include the financial activities of tf,e primary government,

except for fiduciary funds. The statements distinguish between those activities of the School Distict that are
govemmental and those that are considered business-type activities. The statement of net position presents the
furancial condition of the governmental and business-type activities of the School Distict at fiscal year-end. The
statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each program or
function of the School Disticfs governmental activities and for the business-type activities of the School Distict.
Direct o5penses are'those that are specifically associated with a service, program or deparhent and, therefore,
clearly identifiable to a particular function. The policy of the School Disfiict is to not allocate indirect expenses to.
functions in the statement of activities. Program revenues include charggs paid by the recipient of the goods or
services offered by the program, glants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements ofa particular program and interest earned on grants lhat is required to be used to support a particular
program.
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Cape May City School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Government-wide Statements (Continued) - Revenues, which are not classified as program revenues, are
presented as general revenues of the School Disfict, with certain limited exceptions. The comparison of direct
expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each business segment or govemmental function is
self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the School Districl.

Fund Financial Statements - During the fiscal year, the School Disfrict segregates tansactions related to certain
School District functions or activities in separate funds in order to aid frnancial management and to demonstrate
legal compliance. Fund financial statements are designed to present financial infonnation of the School District at
this more detailed level. The focus of governmental and enterprise fund furancial statements is on major funds.
Each major fund is presented in a single column. The fiduciary fund is reported by tWe. The School Disfrict uses
funds to maintain its financial records during the fiscal year, A fund is defined as a fiscal and accounting entity with
a self-balancing set of accounts. There are tlree categories of funds: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary.

Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions typically are financed.
Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances ofcurrent financial resources. Expendable assets

are assigred to tlte various governmental funds according to the purposes for which they may or must be used. Current
liabilities are assigred to the fund from which they will be paid. The difference between governmental fund assets and
liabilities is reported as fund balance. The following are the School District's major governmental funds:

General Fund - The general fund is the general operating fund of the School District and is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. hcluded are certain expenditures for
vehicles and movable instructional or non-instructional equipment classified in the capital outlay sub-fund.

As required by the New Jersey State Departrnent of Education, the School District includes budgeted capital outlay
in this fund. Accounling principles generally accepted in the United States of America as they pertain to
governmental entities state that general fund resources may be used to directly finance capital outlays for long-lived
improvements as long as the resources in such cases are derived exclusively from unrestricted revenues.

Resources for budgeted capital outlay purposes are normally derived from State of New Jersey aid, disfrict ta,xes and
appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are those which result in the acquisition of or additions to capital assets for
land, existing buildings, improvements of grounds, construction of buildings, additions to or remodeling of buildings
and the purchase of built-in equipment.

Special Revenue Fund - The special revenue fund is used to account for and report the proceeds of specific
revenues sources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or
capital projects.

Capital Projects Fund - The capital projects fund is used to account and report financial resources that are

resticted, committed, or assigred to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of
capital facilities and other capital assets, other than those financed by proprietary funds. The fnancial resources are

derived from New Jersey Economic Development Authority gants, temporary notes or serial bonds which are

specifically authorized by the voters as a separate question on the ballot either during the annual election or at a
special election.

Debt Service Fund - The debt service fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted,
committed, or assigned to expenditure for principal and interest.

Proprietary Funds - Proprietary funds are used to account for the School Disfiict's ongoing activities, which are similar to
those in the private sector.
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Cape May City School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30r 2018

1. SUMMARY OF SIGMFICAIIT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Proprietary Funds (Continued)

Enterprise Funds - The enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a

mzuner similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of the School Distict is that all costs (expenses,

including depreciation) of providing goods or seryices to the students on a continuing basis be financed or recovered
primarily through user charges; or, where the School District has decided that periodic determination of revenues
earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management
control, accountability, or other purposes.

The School District's enterprise funds are:

Food Service Fund - This fund accounts for the financial transactions related to the food service operations of the
School District.

Child Care Program - This fund accounts for all revenues and expenses pertaining to the operations of the before
and after school program sponsored by the Disfrict.

All proprietary funds are accounted for on a cost of services or "capital maintenance" measurement focus. This means that
all assets and all liabilities, whether current or noncurent, associated with their activity are included on their balance
sheets. Their reported fund equrty (net position) is segregated into investrnent in capital assets, net of related debt, and

unresticted net position, if applicable. Proprietary fund type operating statements present increases (revenues) and

decreases (expenses) in net total position.

Depreciation of all exhaustive fixed assets used by proprietary funds is charged as an expense against their operations.

Accumulated depreciation is reported on proprietary fund balance sheets. Depreciation has been provided over the

estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Equipment 12 Years
Light Trucks and Vehicles 4 Years
Heavy Trucks and Vehicles 6 Years

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary fund reporting focuses on net position and changes in net position. The fiduciary fund

category is split into two classifications: trust funds and agency funds. Agency funds are used to account for assets held by
the School District in a trustee capaclty or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments, and/or

other funds (i.e. payroll and student activities). They are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve
measurement of results of operations. The School District has two fiduciary funds; an unemployment compensation trust

fund and apayroll fund.

Measurement Focus

Government-wide Financial Statements - The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic

resources measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of the School Disfiict are included

on the statement of net position.

Fund Financial Statements - All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources

measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only cunent assets and current liabilities generally are included on the

balanpe sheet. The statement ofrevenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances reports on the sources (i.e. revenues

and other financing sources) and uses (i.e. expenditures and other financing uses) of curent financial resources. This

approach differs from the manner in which the governmental activities of the government-wide financial statements are

prepared. Governmental fund financial statements, therefore, include a reconciliation with brief explanations to better

identifr the relationship between the government-wide statements and the statements for governmental frrnds.
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Cape May City School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOIINTING POLICIES (Continued)

Mpaslrreme!! Focus (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements (Continued) - Like the govenrment-wide statements, all proprietary fund tlpes are accounted
for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these
funds are included on the statement of net position. The statement of changes in fund net position presents increases (i.e.
revenues) and decreases (i.e. expenses) in net total position. The statement of cash flows provideq information about how
the School District furances and meets the cash flow needs'of its proprietary activities. Fiduciary funds are reported using
the economic resources measurement focus.

Basis of Accountins

Basis of accounting determines when tansactions are recorded in the financial records and reported on the financial
statements. Government-wide financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Governmental
funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Proprietary and fiduciary funds also use the accrual basis of
accounting. Differences in the accrual and the modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the recopition of revenue, the
recording ofunearned revenue, and in the presentation ofexpenses versus expenditures.

Revenues - Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions - Revenue resulting from exchange tansactions, in which each
party gives and receives essentially equal value is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On a
modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become
available. "Measwable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined and "available" means that the resources
will be collected within the cunent fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay
liabilities of the current fiscal year. For the School Distict, available means expected to be received within sixty days
after fiscal year end.

Non-exchange fiansactions, in which the School Disfrict receives value without directly giving equal value in return,
include Ad Valorem (properly) ta:<es, grants, entitlements, and donations. Ad Valorem @roperly) Taxes are susceptible
to accrual, as under New Jersey State Statute, a municipality is required to remit to its school distict the entire balanoe of
ta:<es in the amount voted upon or certified, prior to the end of the school year. The School District records the entire
approved tax levy as revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year since the revenue is both measurable and available.
The School District is entitled to receive monies under the established payment schedule and the unpaid amount is
considered to be an "accounts receivable", With the exception of restricted formula aids recorded in the special revenue
fund, revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which speciff the fiscal year
when the resources are required to be used or the fiscal year when use is first permitted, matching requirements, in which
the School District must provide local resources to be used for a specified purpose, and expenditure requirements, in
which the resources are provided to the School Distict on a reimbursement basis.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be both measurable and available at
fiscal year-end; tuition, grants, fees, and rentals.

Expenses/Expenditures - On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recogtized at the time they are incurred.
The fair value of donated commodities used during the fiscal year is reported in the operating statement as an expense.

Unused donated commodities are reported as unearned revenue. The measurement focus of govenrmental fund
accounting is on decreases in net financial resources (expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generally
recognized in the accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable. Allocations of oost,

such as depreciation and amortization, are not recognized in governmental funds.
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Cape May City School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Budgets/Budgetary Control - Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring ofeach fiscal year for the general,
special revenue, and debt service funds. The budgets are submitted to the county oflice for their approval. Budgets are
prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting. The legal level of budgetary control is established at line item
accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as the lowest (most specific) level of detail as established
pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.J.A.C. 6:23A-16.2(f) L Transfers of appropriations may be
made by School Board resolution at any time during the fiscal year in accordance with N.J.A.C.6A:23A-13.3.

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management confiol device during the fiscal
year. For governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of accounting and
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America with the exception of the legally mandated
revenue recognition of the one or more June state aid payments for budgetary purposes only and the special revenue fund.
Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the governmental fund types.
Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the budgetary basis. The budgetary basis differs
from GAAP in that the budgetary basis recogrizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recogrizes the related revenues,

whereas the GAAP basis does not. Suffrcient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP
basis fi nancial reports.

The budget, as detailed on Exhibit C-1, Exhibit C-2 andExhibit I-3, includes all amendments to the adopted budget, if any.

Exhibit C-3 presents a reconciliation of the general fund revenues and special revenue fund revenues and expenditures
from the budgetary basis of accounting as presented in the general fund budgetary comparison schedule and the special
revenue fund budgetary comparison schedule to the GAAP basis of accounting as presented in the statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances - goverffnental funds. Note that the School Disftict does not report
encumbrances outstanding at year end as expendi,tures in the general fund since the general fund budget follows modified
accrual basis with the exception of the revenue recognition policy for the one or more June state aid payments.

Encumbrances - Under encumbrance accounting purchase orders, confiacts and other commitrnents for the expenditure of
resources are recorded to reserye a portion of the applicable appropriation. Encumbrances are a component of fund balance
at fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but rather commitrnents related to unperformed
contracts for goods and services. Open encumbrances in governmental funds, other than the special revenue fund, which
have not been previously restricted, committed, or assigned, should be included within committed or assigned fund
balance, as appropriate.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund, however, for which the School Disfiict has received advances of grant
awards, and all eligibility and time requirements satisfied are reflected on the balance sheet as uneamed grant revenue at
fiscal year end.

The encumbered appropriation authority caries over into the next fiscal year. An enty will be made at the beginning of
the next fiscal year to increase the appropriation reflected in the certified budget by the outstanding encumbrance amount
as ofthe current fiscal year end.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments - Cash and cash equivalents, for all funds, include petty cash, change funds,
cash in banks and all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase and are

stated at cost plus accrued interest. Such is the definition of cash and cash equivalents used in the statement of cash flows
for the propriitary funds. U.S. Treasury and agency obligations and certificates of deposit with maturities of one year or
less when purchased are stated at cost. All other investments are stated at fair value.

New Jersey school disficts are limited as to the types of investments and types of financial institutions they may invest in.
N.J.S.A. l8A:20-37 provides a list of permissible investrnents that may be purchased by New Jersey school districts.
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Cape May City School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

1. SIJMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued) - N.J.S.A.17:941et seq. establishes the requirements for the
security of deposits of governmental units. The statute requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a
public depository unless such funds are secured in accordance with the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act
(GUDPA), a multiple financial institution collateral pool, which was enacted in 1970 to protect governmental units from a
loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey. Public depositories include State or federally
chartered banl$, savings banks or associations located in or having a branch office in the State of New Jersey, the deposits
of which are federally insured. All public depositories must pledge collateral, having a market value at least equal to five
percent of the average daily balance of collected public funds, to secure the deposits of Govemmental Units. If a public
depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of all other public depositories, is available to pay the full
amount of their deposits to the governmental units.

Tuition Receivable - Tuition charges were established by the School District based on estimated costs. The charges are
subject to adjusfrnent when the final costs are determined.

Tuition Payable - Tuition charges for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and20l7 were based on rates established by the
receiving school disfict. These rates are subject to change when the actual costs have been determined.

Inventories - Inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market. The costs are determined on a fnst'in, first-out
basis.

The cost of inventories in governmental fund types is recorded as expenditures when purchased rather than when
consumed and is not recorded since any amounts are considered immaterial to the basic financial statements.

Inventories recorded in the govemment-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund types are recorded as

expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Prepaid Expenses - Prepaid expenses recorded on the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund
types represent payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2018.

In the governmental fund tlpes, however, payments for prepaid items are fully recogrrized as an expenditure in the fiscal
year of payment. No asset for the prepayment is created, and no expenditure allocation to future accounting periods is
required (non-ollocation method). This is consistent with the basic governmental concept that only expendable frnancial
resources are reported by a specific fund.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources - In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a

separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resourses, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recogriZed as an

outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for defened inflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position

that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recogrized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

Short-Term Interfund Receivables / Payables - Short-term interfund receivables / payables represent amounts that are

owed, other than charges for goods or services rendered to / from a particular fund in the School Disfict and that are due

within one year. theie amounts are eliminated in the govemmental and business-type columns of the statement of net
position, except for the net residual amounts due between governmental and business-type activities, which are presented

as internal balances.

Capital Assets - General capital assets are those assets not specifically related to activities reported in the proprietary
funds, These assets generally result from expenditures in the governmental funds. These assets are leported in the
governmental activities column of the government-wide statement of net position but are not reported in the fund financial
statements.
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Cape May City School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Capital Assets (Continued) - Capital assets utilized by the proprietary funds are reported both in the business-type
activities column of the government-wide statement of net position and the proprietary fund statement of net position.

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions and retirements during the
fiscal year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair market value as of the date received. The School Disfrict
maintains a capitalization threshold of $2,000. The School Distict does not possess any infrastructure. Improvements are

capitalized; the cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend an

asset's life are not. All reported capital assets except land and construction in progress are depreciated. Improvements are

depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets,

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Description

Land and lmprovements
Buildings and lmprovements
Furniture and Equipment
Vehicles

Governmental
Activities

Estimated Lives

10-20 years
10-50 years
5-20 years
5-1 0 years

Business-Type
Actlvities

Estimated Lives

N/A
N/A

12 years
4-6 years

Compensated Absences - Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation,
sick leave, and sabbatical leave. A liability for compensated absences that are aftributable to services already rendered, and

that are not contingent on a specific event that is outside the confiol of the School District and its employees, is accrued as

the employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated absences that relate to future services, or that are contingent on
a specific event that is outside the conffol of the School District and its employees, are accounted for in the period in which
such services are rendered or in which such events take place.

The entire compensated absence liability is reported on the government-wide financial statements.

For govemmental frurds, the current portion of unpaid compensated absences is the amount that is normally expected to be
paid with expendable available financial resources. In proprietary funds, the entire amount of compensated absences is

recorded as a fund liability.

Unearned Revenue - Unearned revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recogrition criteria have been

satisfied and are recorded as a liability until the revenue is both measurable and the School District is eligible to realize the
revenue.

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations - All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are

reported on the government-wide financial statements, and all payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations
payable from proprietary funds are reported on the proprietary fund financial statements. In general, governmental fund
payables and accrued liabilities tha! once incurred, are paid in a timely manner and in full, fiom current frnancial resources

are reported as obligations'of the funds. However, claims and judgments, compensated absences, special termination
benefits and contractually required pension contibutions that will be paid from govemmental funds are reported as a

liability in the fund financial statements only to the extent that they are normally expected to be paid with expendable

available furancial resources. Bonds are recognized as a liability on the fund financial statements when due.

Net Position - Net position represents the difference between the summation of assets and defened outflows of resources,

and the summation of liabilities and defened inflows of resources. Net position is classified into ttre following three

components:

Net investment in capital assets - This component represents capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, net of
outstanding balances of borrowings used for the acquisilion, construction, or improvement of those assets.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICA|IT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Restricted - Net position is reported as resticted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the
enabling legislation adopted by the School Distict or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or law or
regulations of other governments.

Unrestricted - Net position is reported as unresfiicted when it does not meet the criteria of the other two components of
net position.

It is the School District's policy to apply resticted resources when an expense is incuned for purposes for which both
restricted and unrestricted assets are available.

Fund Balance - The School Disftict reports fund balance in classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on
the extent to which the School District is bound to honor constaints on the specific purposes for which amounts in those
funds can be spenl The School Disfiict's classifications, and policies for determining such classifications, are ari follows:

Nonspendable - The nonspendable fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they
are either not in spendable form or are legally or confactually required to be maintained intact. The "not in
spendable fonn" criteria includes items that are not expected to be converted to cash, such as inventories and prepaid
amounts. The School District had no nonspendable fund balance at June 30, 2018.

Restricted - This fund balance classification includes amounts that are restricted to specific purposes. Such
restrictions, or constaints, are placed on the use of resources either by being (a) externally imposed by creditors,
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other govenunents; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed - This fund balance classification includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant
to consffaints imposed by formal action of the School District's highest level of decision making authority, which for
the School District is the Board of Education. Once committed, arnounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless
the Board of Education removes, or changes, the specified use by taking the same q?e of action imposing the
commitment.

Assigned - This fund balance classification includes amounts that are constrained by the School District's intenttobe
used for specific purposes but are neither resficted nor committed. Intent is expressed by either the Board of
Education or by the Business Administrator, to which the Board of Education has delegated the authority to assign
amounts to be used for specific purposes.

Unassigned - This fund balance classification is the residual classification for the General Fund. It represents fund
balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific
purposes within the general fund. The general fund is the only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance
amount. [n other governmental funds, if expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceed the amounts restricted,
committed, or assigned to those purposes, it may be necessary to report a negative unassigned fund balance.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both resticted and unresfricted fund balances are available, it is
the School Distict's policy to spend restricted fund balances first. Likewise, when an expenditure is incuned for purposes
for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance classifications can be used, it is the policy of the School District
to spend fund balances, if appropriate, in the following order: committed, assigned, then unassigrred.

Operating and Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses - Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated
directly from the primary activity of the proprietary frrnds. For the School District these revenues are sales for the food
service'progrcm. Non-operating revenues principally consist of interest income eamed on various interest-bearing
accounts and federal and state subsidy reimbursements for the food service program.

Operating expenses are necessary costs incurred to provide the goods or services that are the primary activtty of the fund.
There are no non-operating expenses
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Interfunds - Interfund receivables and payables that arise from transactions between funds are recorded by all funds
affected by such tansactions in the period in which the transaction is executed.

Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in confonnity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United State of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements - In November 2016, the GASB issued Statement 83, Certain Asset
Retirement Obligations. This Statement addresses accounting and furancial reporting for certain asset retirement
obligations (AROs). An ARO is a legally enforceable liability associated with the retirement of a tangible capital asset. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018. Management is cunently
evaluating the impact of the adoption ofthis Statement on the Disfrict's financial statements.

In January 2017, the GASB issued Statement 84, Fiduciary Activities. The objective of this Statement is to improve
guidance regarding the identification offiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those
activities should be reported. This Statement establishes criteria for identi&ing fiduciary activities of all state and local
governments. The focus of the criteria generally is on (l) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary
activity axfi Q) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included to identiff
fiduciary component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary activities. The requirements of this
Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Management is currently evaluating the
impact of the adoption of this Statement on the Disfrict's fmancial statements.

In June 2017, the GASB issued Statement 87, Leases. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments' financial
statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as

operating leases and recogrized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the

contact. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019.
Management is cunent$ evaluating the impact ofthe adoption of this Statement on the District's financial statements.

In April 2018, the GASB issued Statement 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct Borrowing and
Direct Placements. The requirements of this Statement will improve financial reporting by providing users of financial
statements with essential information that currently is not consistently provided. In addition, information about resources to
liquidate debt and the risks associated with changes in tenns associated with debt will be disclosed. As a result, users will
have better information to understand the effects of debt on a govenment's future resource flows. The requirements of this
Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018. Management is currently evaluating the impact
of the adoption of this Statement on the Distict's financial statements.

In June 2018, the GASB issued Statement 89, Accountingfor Interest Cost Incurred Before the End of a Construction
Period. This Statement requires that interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period be recogtized as an

expense in the period in which the cost is incurred for financial statements prepared using the economic resources

measurement focus. As a result, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period will not be included in the

historical cost of a capital asset reported in a business-type activity or entetprise fund. This Statement also reiterates that in
financial statements prepared using the current financial resources measurement focus, interest cost incurred before the end

of a construction period should be recognized as an expenditure on a basis consistent with governmental fund accounting
principles. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019.

Management is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this Statement on the District's financial statements.
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2. CASH AI\D CASH EQUTVALENTS

Custodial Credit Risk Related to Deposits - Custodial credit risk refers to the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the
School District's deposits might not be recovered. Although the School Distict does not have a fonnal policy regarding
custodial credit risk, N.J.S.A. l7:94let seq. requires that governmental units shall deposit public funds in public
depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Unit (GUDPA). Under
the Act, the first $250,000 of governmental deposits in each insured depository is protected by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC). Public funds owned by the School district in excess of FDIC insured amounts are protected

by GUDPA. However, GUDPA does not protect intermingled trust frrnds such as salary withholdings of funds that pass to
the School District relative to the happening of a future condition. Such funds are classified as uninsured and
uncollateralized. Of the School Disfict's amount on deposit of $2,267,220 as of June 30,2018, $250,000 was insured
under FDIC and the remaining balance of 2,017,220 was collateralized under GUDPA.

3. CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOT]NT

A capital reserve account was established by the School Distict for the accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay
expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The capital reserve account is maintained in the general fund and its activity is
included in the general fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are resfiicted to capital projects in the School District's approved Long-Range
Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the New Jersey Department of Education, a school districl may
increase the balance in the capital reserye by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget certified for ta:res or by
transfer by board resolution at fiscal year-end (June I to June 30) ofany unanticipated revenue or unexpended line-item
appropriation amounts, or both. A school district may also appropriate additional arnounts when the express approval of
the voters has been obtained either by a separate proposal at budget time or by a special question at one ofthe four special
elections authorized pwsuant to N.J.S.A. L9:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6:23A-14.1(9;\, the balance in the account cannot
at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital projects in its approved LRFP.

The activity of the capital reserve for the July l, 2017 to June 30, 2018 fiscal year is as follows:

Balance -July 1,2017

Increased by:

Interest earned

$ 814

814

Decreased by:

Budgeted Withdrawal

Balance - June 30, 2018 814$
G

The June 30, 2018 capital reserye balance does not exceed the LRFP balance of local support costs of uncompleted
projects.
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4. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES

Accounts receivables at June 30,2018 consisted of accounts (fees) and intergovernmental grants. All intergovernmental
receivables are considered collectible in full due to the stable condition of State programs and the current fiscal year
guarantee of federal funds.

Accounts receivable at June 30, 2018 for the School District's individual major and fiduciary funds, in the aggregate, are as

follows:

General
Fund

Special
Revenue

Fund

Capital
Projects

Fund
Proprietary

Fund Total
Intergovernmental

State

Federal
Other

2,963

3,123

$ $

65,874

Total$6,086$65,874$-=:--:
5. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, was as follows:

Balance
JuIy 1,2017 Additions

Governmental Activities :

Land
Total Capital Assets not being

Depreciation
Building and Improvements
Equipment
Total Historical Cost
Less Accumulated Depreciation:

Building and Improvements
Equipment

Total Accumulated Depreciation

$ 538,s00 $ 2,100 $

29,781

(2,404,497) (60,759\

Govemmental Activities Capital
Assets, Net $ 1,381,120 $ (30,978) $

Business-Type Activities:

Equipment
Less - Accumulated Depreciation
Business-Type Activities Capital

Assets, Net

$ 9,964
(7,839)

$ $
(5s3)

2-125

$62$ $ 3,025
69,963
3,123

4,089

$ 4.15 1 $ 76,lll

Deletions
Balance

June 30,2018

$ 540,600

538,500

3,037,924
209,193

2,100

27,681

540,600

3,037,924
236,874

, 3,785,617

(2,257,t08)
(147,389)

3,815,398

(52,408)
(8,351)

(2,309,516)
(155.740)

(2,465,256)

$ 1,350,142

$ 9,964
(8,392\

$
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5. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Depreciation expense in the amount of $60,759 was charged to governmental functions as follows:

Function Amount

Regular Instruction
General Adminisffation
Plant Operation and Maintenance
Unallocated

Principal
Outstanding

$ 42,531
6,075
9,114
3,039

Total depreciation expense $ 60,759

6. INVENTORY

Inventory in the food service fund at June 30, 2018 consisted of the following:

Food $ 2,923
Supplies s68

$ 3,491

7. LONG.TERM OBLIGATIONS

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the following changes occurred in long-term obligations:

June 30,20t7 Additions Reductions

Principal
Outstanding

June 30,2018
Due Within
One Year

Governmental Activities :

Compensated Absences
Net Pension Liability

$ 154,548 $ 13,089 $

707 755
$ $167,637

699,3308,425

862.303 j_I3,08e_ $ 8,425 $ 866,967 $

Compensated Absences - Compensated absences will be paid from the fund from which the employees' salaries are paid.

8. OPERATING LEASES

At June 30, 2018, the District had operating lease agreements in effect for the following:

Copiers

Total operating lease payments made during the year ended June 30, 2018, and 2017 were $17,579 and $15,505
respectively.

$
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8. OPERATING LEASES (Continued)

Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Cape May City School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30, Amount

20t9
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024

$ 24,060
24,060
24,060
24,060
14,565

318

$ I ll,l23

9. PENSION PLANS

Description of Plans - Substantially all of the School Disfict's employees participate in one of the following pension
plans which have been established by State statute, and are administered by the New Jersey Division of Pensions and
Benefits (Division): the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and the Public Employees' Retirement System
(PERS). In addition, several School District employees participate in the Defined Contibution Retirement Program
(DCRP), which is a defined contribution pension plan. This plan is administered by Prudential Financial for the Division.
Each plan has a Board of Trustees that is primarily responsible for its administration. The Division issues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be
obtained by writing to the State of New Jersey, Division of Pensions and Benefits. P.O. Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey,
08625-0295.

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF)

Plan Description - The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan, with a special funding situation, which was established on January l, 1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:66.
The State of New Jersey (the "State') is responsible to fund 100% of the employer contributions, excluding any local
employer early retirement incentive (ERI) contributions. The TPAF's desigrated purpose is to provide retiremenl death
and disability, and medical benefits to qualified members. Membership in the TPAF is mandatory for substantially all
teachers or members of the professional staff certified by the State Board of Examiners, who have titles that are

unclassified, professional and certified. The TPAF's Board of Trustees is primarily responsible for the administration of the
TPAF.

Vesting and Benefit Provisions - The vesting and benefil provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 18A:66. TPAF provides retirement,
death and disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except medical benefits, which vest after 25 years
of service or under the disability provisions of TPAF. Members are always fully vested for their own contributions and,

after three years of service credit, become vested fot ZYo of related interest eamed on the contributions. In the case of death
before retirement, members' beneficiaries are entitled to full interest credited to the members' accounts.

The following represents the membership tiers for TPAF:

Tier Definition
Members who were enrolled prior to Jrily 1,2007
Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 and prior to November 2,2008
Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to May 21, 2010
Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 21,2010 and prior to June 28, 201I
Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 20l l

I
2
3

4
5
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9. PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued) - Service retirement benefits of l/55ft of final average salary
for each year of service credit is available to tiers I and 2 members upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon
reaching age 62. Service retirement benefits of l/60ft of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to
tier 4 members upon reaching age 62 and tier 5 members upon reaching age 65. Early retirement benefits are available to
tier I and 2 members before reachingage 60, tiers 3 and 4 before age 62 with 25 or more years of service credit, and tier 5

before age 65 with 30 or more years of service credit. Benefits are reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month that a
member retires prior to the retirement age for his/her respective tier. Deferred retirement is available to members who have
at least l0 years of service credit and have not reached the service retirement age for their respective tier.

Contributions - The contribution requirements of plan members are determined by N.J.S.A.I8A:66 and requires
confributions by active members and contributing employers. Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 78, P.L. 2011,
effective October l,20ll, the active member contribution rate was increased to 6.5Yo. An additional l.0o/o increase is being
phased-in over seven years beginning on July l, 2012.The member contribution rate was 7.34% in State fiscal year 2018.
The phase-in of the additional incremental member conlribution rate takes place in July of each subsequent State fiscal
year. The State's pension contibution is based on an actuarially determined amount which includes the employer portion
of the normal cost and an amortization of the unfunded accrued liability. Funding for noncontributory goup insurance
benefits is based on actual claims paid.

For fiscal year 2017, the State's pension contribution was less than the actuarial determined amount.

Under current statute, all employer contibutions are made by the State of New Jersey on-behalf of the School Disfrict and
all other related non'contributing employers. No normal or accrued liability contribution by the School District has been
required bver tF several preceding fiscal years. These on-behalf contributions by the State ofNew Jersey are considered a

special funding situation, under the definition of GASB 68, Accaunting and Financial Reportingfor Pensions.

The School Disfiict was not required to make any contibutions to the pension plan during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2018 because of the 100.00% special funding situation with the State ofNew Jersey.

Based on the most recent TPAF measurement date of June 30,2017, the State's confactually required contibution, on-
behalf of the School District, to the pension plan for the fiscal year ended June 30,2018 was $158,991 and was paid by
April l, 2018. School Disfiict employee contributions to the pension plan during the fiscal year ended Juue 30, 2018 were
$123,328.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflow of Resources and Deferred Intlows of Resources Related to
Pensions - For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and defened inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, infonnation about the fiduciary net position ofthe Teacherso Pension
and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and additions toldeductions from the TPAF's fiduciary net position have been determined on
the same basis as they are reported by the TPAF. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair
value.

At June 30, 2018, the School Distict was not required to report a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension
liability because of a l00Yo special funding situation by the State of New Jersey.

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the School Disfiict recognized pension expense of$661,324 and revenue of$661,324
for support provided by the State. Although the School District does not report net pension liability or deferred outflows or
inflows related to the TPAF, the following schedule illustrates the collective net pension liability and deferred items and

the State's portion of the net pension liability associated with the School District.
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9. PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Teachers'Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

The collective amounts are the total of all New Jersey local governments participating in the TPAF plan.

06/30117 061301t6

Collective deferred outflows of resources s 14.160.879-2s7 s l7-414-701-002

Collective deferred inflows of resources 11.800.239.661 t34.532.594
Collective net pension liability (Non-Employer -

State of New Jersev) 67.423.60s-8s9 79-428-907 -033
State's portion of the net pension liability that

was associated with the School District 9.s46.370 11.362.489
State's portion of the net pension liability that

was associated with the School Distict as a percentage
of the collective net nension liabiliw .014ts87944% .014443897t%o

Actuarial assumptions - The total pension liability for the June 30, 2017 measurement date was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of July 1,2016, which was rolled forward to June 30,2017. This actuarial valuation used the following
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the measwement:

Inflation:2.25%
Salary Increases: Varies based on experience
Investnent Rate of Return:7,00o/o

Pre-retirement, post-retirement and disabled mortality rates were based on the experience of TPAF members reflecting
mortality improvement on a generational basis based on a 60-year average of Social Security data from 1953 ta2013,

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1,2076 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for
the period July 1, 20l2to June 30, 2015.

Long-Term Fxpected Rate of Return - In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments (7.00o/o at June 30,2017) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the
Division of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. The long-term
expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real

rates ofreturn (expected returns, net ofpension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset

class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate ofreturn by weighting the expected future real
rates ofreturn by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.
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9. PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Teachers'Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of retum for each major asset class included in TPAF's target asset allocation as of
June 30, 2017 are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class Target Allocation
Long-Term Expected
Real Rate of Return

Absolute return/risk mitigation
Cash Equivalents
U.S. Treasuries
Investment grade credit
Public high yield
Global diversifi ed credit
Credit oriented hedge funds
Debt related private equity
Debt related real estate
Private real asset
Equity related real estate

U.S. Equity
Non-U.S. developed markets equity
Emerging markets equity
Buyouts/venture capital

05.00%
05.50%
03.00%
10.00%
02.50%
05.00%
01.00%
02.00%
0t.00%
02.50%
06.25o/o

30.00%
1150%
06.50o/o

08.25%

05.51o/o

01.00%
01.87%
03.78%
06.820/o

07.10%
06,60%
10.630/o

06.6t%
11.83%
09.230/o

08.19%
09.00%
It.64%
t308%

100.00%

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the State's total pension liability ww 4.25o/o as of June 30, 2017. This
single blended discount rate was based on the long-tenn expected rate of return on pension plan invesfrnents of 7.00%, and

a municipal bond rate of 3.58% as of June 30,2017, based on the Bond Buyer Go 2O-Bond Municipal Bond Index which
includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of cash

flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current
member contribution rates and that contributions from employers (State of New Jersey) will be made based on the

contribution rate in the most recent fiscal year. The state contributed40% of the actuarially determined contributions.
Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make projected future benefit
payments of current plan members through 2036. Therefore, the long-teim expected rate of return on plan investments was

applied to projected benefit payments through 2036, and the municipal bond rate was applied to projected benefit payrrents

after that date in determining the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the School District's proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. As
previously mentioned, TPAF has a special funding situation where the State pays 100% of the School Distict's annual

required contribution. As such, the proportionate share of the net pension liability as of June 30,2017, the pension plans

measurement date, attributable to the School District is $0.00, and the State of New Jersey's proportionate share of the net
pension liability, atftibutable to the School District, using a discount rate of 4.25o/o, as well as what the School District's
proportionate slare of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is I percentage point
lower (3.250/) or I percentage point higher (5.25o/o) that the current rate:
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9. PENSION PLAIIS (Continued)

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

17o Decrease
Current

Discount Rate 17o Increase
(s.2s%l4.25o/ol

District's proportionate share of the
net pension liability $ $ $

State's proportionate share ofthe
net pension liability associated with the
School District 11.341,387 9,546,370 8,067,627

$ 11,341,387 $ 9,546,370 $ 8.067 ,627

Detailed information about the pension plan's sensitivity of the collective net pension liability to changes in the discount
rate is available in the separately issued State of New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits financial report.

Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS)

Flan Description - T'he Public Employees' Retirement System is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan which was established on January 1, 1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 43:15A. The PERS desigrated purpose to
is to provide retirement, death and disability, and medical benefits to certain qualified members. Membership in the PERS
is mandatory for substantially all full-time employees of the School Distict, provided the employee is not required to be a
member of another state-administered retirement system or other state pension fund or local jurisdiction's pension fund.
The PERS's Board of Trustees is primarily responsible for the adminisfiation of the PERS.

Vesting and Benefit Provisions - The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 43:l54' and 43:38. PERS provides
retirement, death and disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except medical benefits, which vest
after 25 years of service or under the disability provisions of PERS

The following represents the membership tiers for PERS:

Tier Definition

(

Members who were enrolled prior to July l, 2007
Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 and prior to November 2,2008
Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2,2008 and prior to May 2l,2OlO
Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 21,2010 and prior to June 28, 201I
Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 2011

Service retirement benefits of 1/55ft of flral average salary for each year of service credit is available to tiers I and 2
members upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service retirement benefits of l/60tr of final
average salary for each year of service credit is available to tier 4 members upon reaching age 62 and tier 5 members upon
reaching age 65. Early retirement benefits are available to tier I and 2 members before reaching age 60, tiers 3 and 4 before
age 62 with 25 or more years of service credit, and tier 5 before age 65 with 30 or more years of service credit. Benefits are
reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month that a member retires prior to the retirement age for his/her respective
tier. Defened retirement is available to members who have at least 10 years of service credit and have not reached the
service retirement age for their respective tier.

Connibutions - The contribution requirements of plan members are determined by N.J.S.A 43:l5A and requires
contibutions by active members and contibuting employers. Members contribute at a uniform rate. Pursuant to the
provisions of Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, effective October l,20ll, the active member contribution rate was increased to 6.5Yo,
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9. PENSION PLA|IS (Continued)

Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

An additional1.0% increase is being phased'in over seven years beginning on July l, 2012.The member contribution rate
was7.34Yo in State fiscal year 2018. The phase-in of the additional incremental member confiibution rate takes place in
July of each subsequent State fiscal year. The rate for members who are eligible for the Prosecutors Part of PERS (Chapter
336, P.L. 2001) increased from 8.5% of base salary to l0%. Employers' contibution amounts are based on an actuarially
determined rate. The School District's contribution amounts are based on an actuarially determined rate which included the
normal cost and unfunded accrued liability.

The School Distict's contractually required contribution rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 was l2.52Yo of the
School Disfrict's covered payroll. This amount was actuarially determined as the amount that, when combined with
employee contibutions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, including an
additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.

Based on the most recent PERS measurement date of June 30, 2017, the School Disficts confiactually required
contibution to the pension plan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 was $26,164 and was paid by April 1, 2018. School
District employee contributions to the pension plan during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 were $19,960.

The School District is billed annually for its normal contibution plus any accrued liability
contibutions, equal to the required confribution for each fiscal year, were as follows:

Non
Fiscal Normal Accrued Contributory Long Term
Year Contributions Liabilitv Life Disability

The School Disffict's

' Total
Liability
Paid by '

District

2018

2017
2016

$$$ 3,444
4,003

3,957

21,445
20,371
18,227

1,275

1,216
1,188

26,882
25,590
23,372

$ 718 $

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Defeted Outflow of Resources and Defeted Intlows of Resources Related to
Pensions - For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and defened inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position ofthe PERS and additions
toldeductions from PERS fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by PERS. For
this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investrnents are reported at fair value.

At June 30, 2018, the School District reported a liability of $657,449 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability.
The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017 , and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension

liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1,2016. The School Disfrict's proportion of the of the net
pension liability was based on a projection of the School District's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan
relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined.

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the School Disfiict recognized pension expense of $18,175. At June 30, 2018, the
School District reported a liability of $657,449 for its proportionate share of the PERS net pension liability and deferred
outflows of resources related to PERS from the following sources:
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9. PENSION PLAftS (Continued)

Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Defened
Outflows of
Resources

Deferred

Inflows of
Resources

Differences between exrected and actual e:qrerience $ 15,481 $

Chan ges of as surnrtions 132.453 131.968

Net Difference between projected and actual eamings

on pension plan investnpnts 4,477

Changes in nroportion 9;649 rcl.n3
District contributions subsequent to the rneasurement

date 29,690

Total $ 281.750 s 293.941

$29,690 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from school distict confibutions
subsequent to the measurement date (i.e. for the school year ending June 30, 2018, the plan measurement date is June 30,
2017) will be recognized as a reduction of the net liability in the year ended June 30, 2018.

Other amounts reported as deferred butflows of resources and defened inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recogrized in pension expense as follows:

For the year
ended:

Net Defened
Outlows of
Resources

$ (62.963)2019
2020 26.907
202t 17,602
2022 Q0.7st)

0-676\2023

Total $ (41.881)

-

I
I
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The amortization of the above other defened outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions
will be over the following number of years:

Deferred Defened
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience
Year of Pension Plan Deferral:

June 30,2014
June 30,2015 5.72
June 30,2016 5.57
June 30,2017 5.48

Changes of assumptions
Year of Pension Plan Deferral:

June 30, 2014 6.44
5.72June 30, 2015

June 30,2016 5.57
June 30,2017 - 5.48

Net Difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan invesfinents

Year of Pension Plan Deferral:
June 30,2014 : i:33June 30, 2015
June 30, 2016, 5.00

June 30,2017 5.00
Changes in proportion

Year of Pension Plan Defenal:
June 30, 2014 6.44 6.44

June 30,2015 5.72 5.72
June 30,2016 5.57 5.57

9. PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Additional Information

Collective balances at June 30,2017 and 2016 are as follows:

6130120t7 6130/2016
Collective defened outflows of resources s 6.424.455.842 s 8.685.338.380
Collective defened inflows of resources $ 5.700.625,98r $ 870,133,s95

Collective net pension liabilitv s 23.278.401.588 s 29.6t7.13t.759

School Disfi ict' s Proportion .0028242867% .0028805056%
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9. PENSION PLAI\S (Continued)

Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Actuarial assumptions - The total pension liability for the June 30, 2017 measurement date was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of July 1,2016, which was rolled forward to June 30,2017. This actuarial valuation used the following
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement:

Inflation rcte:2.25%o
Salary Increases:

Through 2025:1.65-4.15% based on age
Thereafter: 2.65-5:I5%based on age

Invesfinent Rate of Return:7.00o/o

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Employee Pre-retirement Mortality Table for male and female

active employees. For State employees, mortality tables are set back 4 years for males and females. For local employees,
mortality tables are set back 2 years for males and 7 years for females. In addition, the tables provide for future
improvements in mortality from the base year of 2013 using a generational approach based on the plan actuary's modified
MP-2014 projection scale. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Male and Female

Mortality Tables (set back I year for males and females) for service retirements and beneficiaries of former members and a

one-year static projection based on mortality improvement Scale AA. In addition, the tables for service retirements and

beneficiaries of former members provide for future improvements in mortality from the base year of 2013 using a

generational approach based on the plan actuary's modified MP-2014 projection scale. Disability retirement rates used to
value disabled retirees were based on the RP-2000 Disables Mortality Table (set back 3 years for males and set forward I
year for females).

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1,2016 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for
the period July l, 201I to June 30, 2014.It is likely that future experience will not exactly confom to these assumptions.
To the extent that actual experience deviates from these assumptions, the emerging liabilities may be higher or lower than
anticipated. The more the experience deviates, the larger the impact on future financial statements.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return - In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments (7.00o/o at June 30, 2017) is deterrnined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the
Division of Invesfinents and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. The long term
expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in which best'estimate ranges of expected future real
rates ofreturn (expected returns, net ofpension plan invesfrnent expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset

class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real
rates ofreturn by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.
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9. PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Public Employeesr Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in PERS's target asset allocation as of
June 30, 2017 arc summarized in the following table:

Asset Class
Long-Term Expected
Real Rate of Return

Absolute return/risk mitigation
Cash equivalents
U.S. Treasuries
Investnent grade credit
Public high yield
Global diversifi ed credit
Credit oriented hedge funds
Debt related private equity
Debt related real estate
Private real assets

Equrty related real estate
U.S. Equity
Non-U.S. developed markets equity
Emerging markets equity
Buyouts/venture capital

Target Allocation
05.00%
05.50%
03.00%
t0.00%
0250%
05.00%
01.00%
02.00%
01.00o/o

0250%
06.25%
30.00%
11.50%
06.50o/o

08.25%

0551%
01.00%
01.87o/o

03.78%
06.82o/o

07.10%
06.60%
t0,63%
06.61d/o

11.83%
09.23%
08.19%
0e.00%
tt.64%
13.08%

100.00%

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the State's total pension liability was 5.00% as of June 30,2017. This
single blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.00%, and

a municipal bond rate of 3.58Yo as of June 30,2017, based on the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index which
includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of cash

flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current
member contribution rates and that contibutions from employers will be made based on the contribution rate in the most
recent fiscal year. The state employer contributed 40% of the actuarially determined contributions and the local employers
contibuted 100% of their actuarially determined confiibutions. Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net
position was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan members through 2040.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to projected benefit payments through
2040, and the municipal bond rate was applied to projected benefit payments after that date in determining the total pension

liability.

Sensitivity of the School District's proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The
following presents the School Distict's proportionate share of the net pension liability measured as of June 30,2017,
calculated using the discount rate of 5.00yo, as well as what the School District's proportionate share of the nel pension

liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is I percentage point lower (4.00%) or I percentage point
higher (6.000/o) that the current rate:

Current
Discount Rate1%o Decrease

(4.00o/ol
1%o Increase

(5.00o/o (6.00%\
School Districts's proportionate share of the
net pension liability $ 815,610 $ 657,449 $ 525,681

Pension Plan/iduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued State of New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits financial report.

)
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9. PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP)

The Defined Contribution Retirement Program is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined contribution pension plan
which was established on July l, 2007, under the provisions of Chapter 92, P.L. 2007 and Chapter 103, P.L 2007
(N.J.S.A.43:I5C-I et. seq), and expanded under the provisions of Chapter 89, P.L. 2008 and Chapter 1, P.L. 2010. The
Defined Contribution Retirement hogram Board oversees the DCRP, which is administered for the Divisions of Pensions
and Benefits by Prudential Financial. The DCRP provides eligible members, and their beneficiaries, with a tax-sheltered,
defured contribution retirement benefit, along with life insurance and disability coverage. Vesting and benefit provisions
are established by N.J.S.A. 43:15C-l et. seq.

The contribution requirements of plan members are determined by State statute. In accordance with Chapter 92,P.L.2007
and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007, plan memters are required to confiibute 5.5% of their annual covered salary. In addition to
the employee contributions, the School District's contribution amounts for each pay period are tansmitted to Prudential
Financial not later than the fifth business day after the date on which the employee is paid for that pay period.

The School District's contributions, equal to the required conffibution for each fiscal year, were as follows:

Fiscal
Year

Paid by
School
District

6,434
4,596
5,404

10. POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Deseription of Plan - Plan description and benefits provided P.L. 1987, c. 384 and P.L. 1990, c.6 required Teachersr
Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and the Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS), respectively, to fund post-

retirement medical benefits for those state employees who retire after accumulating 25 years of credited service or on a
disability retirement. P.L. 2007, c.103 amended the law to eliminate the funding of post-retirement medical benefits
through the TPAF and PERS. It created separate funds outside of the pension plans for the funding and payment of post-
retirement medical benefits for retired state employees and retired educational employees. The cost of these benefits is

funded through contributions by the State in accordance with P.L. 1994, c.62. Funding of post-retirement medical benefi*
changed from a pre-funding basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in Fiscal Year 1994.

The State is 4lso responsible for the cost attributable to P.L. 1992, c.126, which provides employer paid health benefits to
members of PERS and the Alternate Benefit hogram (APB) who retired from a board of education or county college with
25 years of service (GASB Cod. Sec. 2300.106(g). The School Employees Health Benefits Program (SEIIBP) Act is found
in New Jersey Statutes Annotated , Title 52, Article 17 .25 et. seq. Rules governing the operation and administration of the
program are found in Title 17, Chapter 9 of the New Jersey Administrative Code.

No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASBS No. 75.

Employees covered by benefit terms. At June 30, 2017,rhe following employees were covered by the benefit terms:
TPAF participant retirees :

As of June 30,2017, there were 112,966 retirees receiving post-retirement medical benefits, and the
State contributed $1.39 billion on their behalf.

PERS participant retirees:
The State paid $238.9 million toward Chapter 126 benefits for 20,913 eligible retired members in Fiscal
Year 2017.

2018
2017
2016

$
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10. POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Conttnued)

The State, a nonemployer contributing entity, is the only entity that has a legal obligation to make employer contributions
to OPEB for qualified retired PERS and TPAF participants. The LEA's proportionate share percentage detennined under
paragraphs 193 and 203 through 205 of GASBS No. 75 is zero percent. Accordingly, the LEA did not recognize any
portion of the collective net OPEB liability on the Statement of Net Position. Accordingly, the following OPEB liability
note information is reported at the State's level and is not specific to the school district. Note that actual numbers will be
published in the NJ State's CAFR

Actuarial assumptions and other inputes - The total nonemployer OPEB liability as of the June 30, 2017 was determined
by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2017. The total nonemployer OPEB
liability as of June 30,2016 was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30,2016. The actuarial assumptions vary
for each plan member depending on the pension plan the member enrolled in.

This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement:

Inflation 2.50%

TPAF/ABP PERS PFRS
Salary Increases

Throu$r2026

Thereafter

I.55 - 4.55Yo

based on years

of service

2.OO - 5.45Vo

based on years

of service

2.15 - 4.l5Yo
based on age

3.15 - 5.l5Yo
based on age

2.lO - 8.98Yo

based on age

3.lO - 9.98Yo

based on age

Preretirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Headcount-Weighted Healthy Employee Male/Female mortality
table with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the central year using the MP-2017 scale.
Postretirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Headcount-Weighted Healthy Annuitant Male/Female mortalrty
table with fully generational improvement projections from the cental year using the MP-2017 scale. Disability mortality
was based on the RP-2014 Headcount-Weighted Disabled MalelFemale mortality table with fully generational
improvement projections from the cenfral year using the MP-2017 scale.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30,2016 valuation were based on the results of actuarial experience studies for
the periods July l, 20L2 - June 30, 2015, July l, 2010 - June 30,2013 and July l,20ll - June 30,2014 for TPAF, PFRS,
and PERS, respectively.

Health Cqre Trend Assumptions - For pre-Medicare preferred provider organization (PPO) medial benefits, this amount
initially is 5.9%o and decreases to a 5.0% long-term frend rate after nine years. For self-insured post-65 PPO medical
benefits, the trend rute is 4.5o/o. For health maintenance organization (IIMO) medical benefits, the tend rate is initially
5.9%o and decreases to a 5.0%o long-term tend rate after nine years. For prescription drug benefits, the initial fend rate is
l0.5Yo decreasing to a5.0%o long-term fiend rate after eight years. For the Medicare Part B reimbursement, the fiend rate is
5.0%. The Medicare Advantage frend rate is 4.5Yo and will continue in all future years.

Discount Rate - The discount rate for June 30, 2017 and.20l6 was 3.58% and2.85Yo, respectively. This represent the
municipal bond retum rate as chosen by the Division. The source is the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index,
which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higber.

Retirees' Share of Benq/it Related Costs - Pursuant to Chapter 78, P.L.20ll, future retirees eligible for postetirement
medical coverage who have less than 20 years of creditable service on June 28,2011 will be required to pay a percentage
of the cost of their health care coverage in retirement provided they retire with 25 or more years of pension service credit.
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10. POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

The percentage of the premium for which the retirees will be responsible will be detennined based on the retiree's annual
retirement benefit and level of coverage.

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability reported by the State of New Jersey 
Total O'EB

Liability
$ 57,831,784184

$ 2,391,878,884

1,699,441,736

Q,Og6,5gg,L2g)
(r,v+2,412,56)

N/A
45,748,749

N/A
N/A

I (4,191,942,326)

Balance atM/30/2017 $ 53,639,841,858

Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect a change in the discount rate from 2.85% as of June 30,2016 to 3.58% as

ofJune 30,2017.

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate - The following presents the total nonemployer
OPEB liability of the State as of June 30,2017 for school board retirees, as well as what the State's total OPEB liability for
school board would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is l-percentage -point lower or lpercentage-point
higher than the Qurrent discount rate:

Current
17o Decrease DiscountRate 17o Increase

Q.58Vo ) (3.5SVo\ (4.58Vo)

Total OPEB Liability (School Retirees) $ 63,6'14,362,200 $ 53,639,841,858 $ 45,680,364,953

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liabilily to changes in the healthcare cost ffend rates - The following presents the total
nonemployer OPEB liability of the State as of June 30,2107, as well as what the State's total OPEB liability would be if it
were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are l-percentage-point lower or l-percentage point higher than the
current healthcare cost tend rates:

17o Decrease

Ilealthcare
CostTrend

Rates 17o Increase

Total OPEB Liability (SchoolRetirees) S M,ll3,58/,56O $ 53,639,841,858 $ ffi290,599457
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10. POST'RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

OPEB Expense ond Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Relsted to OPEB: For the year
ended June 30,2017, the board of education recogtized OPEB expense of $494,538 determined by the State as the total
OPEB liability for benefits provided througb a defined benefit OPEB plan that is not administered through a tust that
meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASBS No. 75 and in which there is a special funding situation.

In accordance with GASBS No. 75, the school disfiict's proportionate share of school retirees OPEB is zero, there is no
recognition ofthe allocation ofproportionate share ofdeferred outflows ofresources and deferred inflows ofresources.

At June 30,2017, the State reported defened outflows of resources and defened inflows of resources related to retired
school employee's OPEB from the following sources:

06130/17

Collective defened outflows of resources $ 99.843.2ss

Collective deferred inflows of resources 6.443.612.287
Collective net OPEB liability (Non-Employer -

State ofNew Jersev) 53.639-841.858
State's portion of the net OPEB liability that

was associated with the School District 9.646.738
State's portion of the net OPEB liability that

was associated with the School District as a percentage
of the collective net OPEB liabiliW 0.02%

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

Changes in proportion $ 99.843,255 $ 99.843.255

Changes of as s urnptions 6.343.769.032

Total $ 99,843,25s $ 6,M3,612,287

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to retired school employee's
OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Detailed information about the pension plan's sensitivity of the collective net pension liability to changes in the discount
rate is available in the separately issued State ofNew Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits financial report.

For the year
ended:
2018 s 042.830.8Tt
2019 042.83O.09Tt
2@O 042.830.097])
2V2l 042.830-09T
2n22 042.830.WTt

Therafter Q.629.6t8.s4n

Total s 6.343.769.032\

I
_l
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11. ON-BEHALFPAYMENTS

For the fiscal year ended June 30,2017, the School District has recognized as revenues and expenditures on-behalf
payments made by the state for normal retirement costs, post-retirement medical costs and long term disability insurance
related to TPAF, in the fund statements. The amounts recognized as revenues and expenditures in the fund financial
statements for normal costs, post-retirement medical costs and long term disability insurance were $21 8,647 , $141,220, and
$298, respectively. In addition, $114,660 on-behalf payments were made by the state for the employer's share of social
security contributions for TPAF members, as calculated on their base salaries.

12. RISKMANAGEMENT

The School Distict is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft oi damage to, and desffuction of assets; errors
and omissions; employee health and accident claims; and natural disasters.

Joint Insurance Pool - The School District is a member of the New Jersey School Boards Association Insurance Group
(NJSBAIG). Insurance coverage as provided by the Fund can be found in the Statistical Section of this Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report.

Annual contibutions to the Fund are determined by the Fund's Board of Trustees. The School Disfrict is jointly and
personally liable for claims insured by the Fund and its members during the period of its membership, including liability
for supplemental assessments, if necessary. The Fund's Board of Trustees may authorize refunds to its members in any
fund year for which contibutions exceed the amount necessary to fund all obligations for that year.

The Fund publishes its own financial report which can be obtained at www.njsbaig.com.

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance - The School District has elected to fund its New Jersey
Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the "Benefit Reimbursement Method". Under this plarl the School District
is required to reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its former employees and charged
to its account with the State. The School Distict is billed quarterly for amounts due to the State.

The following is a summary of School Disfict contributions, employee contributions, reimbursements to the State for
benefits paid and the ending balance of the School District's expendable trust fund for the current and previous two fiscal
years:

Interest Board Employee Amount Ending
Fiscal Year Earninss Contributions Contributions Reimburqgd Balflnce

2017-2018
20t6-20t7
2015-20t6

$$ -$
I
I

14,914 $
9,726
9,422

10,970 $
8,821
7,018

11,674

7,730
6,824

13. DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The School Distict offers its employees a choice of various defened compensation plans created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code Section a03O). The plans, available to all permanent School District employees, permit
participants to defer a portion oftheir current salary to future years. Participation in the plans is optional. The deferred
compensation is not available to the participants until termination, retirement, death, or an unforeseeable emergency
occurs. The plan assets are held in trust for the benefit of the employee and are administered by a third party therefore they
are not reflected on the financial statements of the School District.
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14. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The School District accounts for compensated absences (e.g. unused vacation, sick leave) as directed by Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GASB 16), "Accounting for Compensated Absences". A liability for
compensated absences attributable to services already rendered and not contingent on a specific event that is outside the
contol of the employer and employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits.

School District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in accordance with the School Disfiict's
personnel policy. Upon termination, employees are paid for accrued vacation. The School District's policy permits
employees to accumulated unused sick leave and carry forward the full amount to subsequent years. Upon retirement
employees shall be paid by the School District for the unused sick leave in accordance with the School District's
agreements with the various employee unions.

The liability for vested compensated absences is recorded within those funds as the benefits accrued to the employees. As
of June 30, 2018, the liability for compensated absences in the governmental activities fund type was $167,637.

15. INTERFTIND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS

Interfund receivables/payables are recorded to cover temporary cash shortages and/or timing differences in the respective
funds. There are no interfund balances that are not expected to be repaid by June 30, 2018. The following interfund
balances were recorded on the various balance sheets as ofJune 30, 2018:

Fund
Interfunds
Receivable

Interfunds
Payable

General
Special Revenue
Capital Projects
Proprietary
Fiduciary

$ 183,287 $
68,864
11,047
78,475
24,901

Total $ 183,287 $ 183,287

16. CONTINGENCIES

The School District participates in a number of federal and state programs that are fully or partially funded by grants
received from other governmental units. Expenditures furanced by grants are subject to audit by the appropriate grantor
government. If expenditures are disallowed due to noncompliance with grant program regulations, the School Disffict may
be required to reimburse the grantor govemment.

At June 30, 2018, significant amounts ofgrant expenditures have not been audited by the granting agency, but the School
District believes that disallowed expenditures discovered in subsequent audits, if any, will not have a material effect on any
ofthe individual funds or the overall financial position of the School District.

17. TAXABATEMENTS

As defured by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), a tax abatement is an agreement between a
govemment and an individual or entlty in which the government promises to forgo tax revenues and the individual or entity
promises to subsequently take a specific action that conffibutes to economic development or otherwise benefits the
government or its citizens. School disfricts are not authorized by New Jersey statute to enter into tax abatement
agreements. However, the county or municipality in which the school disfict is situated may have entered into ta:<

abatement agreements, and that potential must be disclosed in these financial statements.
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17. TAX ABATEMENTS (Continued)

If the county or municipality entered into tax abatement agreements, those agreements will not directly affect the school
district's local tax revenue because N.J.S.A. 54:4-75 and N.J.S.A. 54:4-76 require that amounts so forgiven must
effectively be recouped from other taxpayers and remitted to the school district.

For a local school distict board of education or board of school estimate that has elected to raise their minimum tax levy
using the required local share provisions at N.J.S.A. l8A:7F-5(b), the loss of revenue resulting from the municipality or
county having entered into a tax abatement agreement is indeterminate due to the complex nature of the calculation of
required local share performed by the New Jersey Deparhnent of Education based upon district property value and wealth.

The City of Cape May had no tax abatements.

18. DEFICIT UNASSIGNED FUND BALAI\CE

The School District has a deficit unassigred fund balance of $9,501 in the Special Revenue Fund as of June 30,2018 as
reported in the fund statements (modified accrual basis). N.J.S.A. 18A:2244.2 provides that in the event a state school aid
payment is not made until the following school budget year, school districts must record the delayed one or more June siate
aid payments as revenues, for budget purposes only, in the current school budget year. The statute provides legal authority
for school disticts to recogtize this revenue in the current budget year. For intergovernmental tansactions, GASB
Statement No. 33 requires that recognition (revenue, expenditure, asset, liability) should be in symmety, i.e., if one
government recognizes an asseL the other government recogrizes a liability. Since the State is recording the June state aid
payments in the subsequent fiscal year, the School District cannot recogrize the June state aid payment on the GAAP
frnancial statements until the year the State records the payable. Due to the timing difference of recording the June state
aid payments, the general and special revenue fund balance deficit does not alone indicate that the School Disfiict is facing
financial diffrculties.

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2 any negative unassigred general fund balance that is reported as a direct result from a
delay in the June payments of state aid until the following fiscal year, is not considered in violation of New Jersey statute
and regulation nor in need of conective action. The School District deficit in the GAAP funds statements of $9,501 in the
Special Revenue Fund is equal to or less than the June state aid payrnent.

19. DEFICIT UNRESTRICTED NET POSITIONS

As of June 30,2018, a deficit of $525,838 existed in the Unrestricted Net Position of the Govemmental Activities. A
reconciliation of Unreserved Fund Balance reported on Exhibit B-l to Unresticted Net Position reported on Exhibited A-l
as follows:

Balances, June 30, 2018:
Fund Balance - Unassiped
Liabilies:

Net Pension Differences
Compensated Absences

Unresfricted Net Position (Deficit)

$ 341,129

(699,330)
(167,637\

$( s25,838)
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20. SHARED SERVICES AGREEMENT

On May 7,2016, the Distict entered a shared services agreement with the City of Cape May (City) providing for the
Disfiict's swimming pool reconstruction. Under the agreemen! the cost of the reconsfruction is estimated to be $2,000,000
which will be funded by a City bond ordinance. The District will be responsible to pay to the City, in (10) ten equal annual
instalments, one million ($1,000,000) dollars to contribute to the final cost of the project, without'intererl,-ssmalensing one
(1) year after the project receives a final certificate ofoccupancy.

In addition, the Disfict and City shall equally share the maintenance expense of the pool, which is specifically the
chemical and water costs, and mechanical repairs not covered by warranties.

21. FUNDBALANCES

RESTNCTED

As stated in Note 1, the resticted fund balance classification includes amounts that are restricted to specific purposes.
Such restictions, or constraints, are placed on the use of resources by either of the following: (a) externally imposed by
creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or O) imposed by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation. Specific restrictions of the School District's fund balance are summarized as follows:

General Fund:

Capital Reserve - As of June 30, 2018, the balance in the capital reserve account is $814. Of this amount $814 is
resfticted for future capital outlay expenditures for capital projects in the School District's approved Long-Range
Facilities Plan.

Maintenance Reserve Account - As of June 30, 2018, the balance in the maintenance reserve account is
$100,098. These funds are restricted for the required maintenance of school facilities in accordance with the
Educational Facilities Construction and Financing Act @FCFA) (N.J.S.A. l8A:7G-9) as amended by P.L. 2004,
c.73 (S1701).

Impact Aid Reserve - As of June 30, 2018, the balance in the impact aid reserve is $700,013.

ASSIGNED

As stated in Note 1, the assigred fund balance classification includes amounts that are constained by the School District's
intent to be used for specific purposes but are neither resticted nor committed. Specific assignments of the School
Distict's fund balance are summarized as follows:

General Fund:

Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures - The School District has appropriated and included as an
anticipatedrevenue forthe fiscal year ending June 30,2018, $930,967 ofgeneral fundbalance at June 30,2018.

Other Purposes - At June 30, 2018 the School DisFict has $117,412 of encumbrances outstanding for purchase
orders and contracts signed by the School District, but not completed, as of the close ofthe fiscal year.
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?1. FUND BALA|ICES (Continued)

UNASSIGNED

As stated in Note 1, the unassiped fund balance classification represents fund balance that has not been restricted,
committed, or assigned to specific purposes. The School Disfiict's unassigred fund balance is summarized as follows:

General Fund - As of June 30, 2018, the fund balance of the general fund was $341,141.

Special Revenue Fund - As of June 30, 2018, the fund balance of the special revenue fund was a deficit of $9,501.
The deficit is a result of the delay in the recording of the payment of state aid until the following fiscal year (See Note
18).

Capital Projects Fund - As of June 30, 2018, the fund balance of the capital projects fund was $149
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CAPE MAY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetary Com parison Schedule

General Fund
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Original
Budget

Budget
Transfers

Final
Budget Ac'tual

$ 1,849,389
1s,611

10
1',!

28,734

1,893,755

c.1

Variance
Final to
Actual

$

2
(8)

26,234

26,228

REVENUES:
Local sources:

Local tax levy
Tuition - other LEA'S within State
Tuition - lndividuals
Capital reserve - interest
Maintenance reserve - interest
lmpact aid reserve - interest
Miscellaneous

Federal sources:
P.L. 103-382 lmpact Aid - General
P.L. 103-382 lmpac{ Aid - Capital
Department of Defense

Total federal sources

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT EXPENSE:
Regular Programs - lnstruction:

Salaries of teachers
Pre-Kindergarten
Kindergarten
Grades 1-5
Grades 6-8

Total lnstruction

Regular Programs - Home lnstruciion:
Salaries of Teachers

Total Home lnstruction

$ 1t849,389
15,611

8
19

2,500

$ 1,849,389
15,611

8
19

2,s00

1,867,527

$

Total local sources 1,867,527

State sources:
Special education aid 78,905
Security aid 40,306
Adjustment aid 273,558
Transportation aid 5,993
School choice aid 166,092
PARCC ReadinessAid 1,330
Per Pupil Growth Aid 1,330
Professional Learning Community Aid 1,700
Extraordinary Aid
On-behalf TPAF pension contributions (non-budgeted)
On-behalf TPAF post retirement medical (non-budgeted)
On-behalf TPAF - LTDI (non-budgeted)
Reimbursed TPAF social security crntributions (non-budgete-

Total state sources

(1 1,384)

569,214 (11,384) s57,830 1,035,6't 8

78,90s
40,306

262,',t74
5,993

166,092
1,330
1,330
1,700

78,905
40,306

262,174
5,993

166,092
.1,330

1,330
1,700
2,963

218,647
141,220

298
114,660

2,963
218,U7
141,220

298
114,660

477,788

650,000
10,000

660,000

3,096,741 (11,384)

650,000
10,000

660,000

3,085,357

'1,518,772

24,042

1,542,8't4

4,472,187

868,772
(10,000)
24,U2

882,814

,1,386,83q

, 111,153

45,264
180,298
609,459

364
768

29,014
(19,418)

45,628
181,066
638,473

91,735

2,875

2,875

45,628
181,066
636,920

91,464

2,875

2,875

1,553
271

946,174

2j00 775

2,100 775

728 956,902 955,078 1,824

See Management's Discussion and Analysis section of this report fcr explanation of significant budget variances, original and final.

70 (CoNTTNUEDToNExTPAG9



c.t
CAPE MAY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Budgetary Comparieon Schedule
General Fund

Flscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

(Contlnuod from prior page)

Regular Programs - Undistributed lnstruclion:
Other salaries for instruction
Purchased technical services
Other purchased services
General supplies
Textbooks
Miscellaneous Expenditures
Other objects

Total Undistributed lnstruction

Total - Regular Programs - lnstruction

Special Educ lnstruction: Resource Room
Salaries of teachers
General supplies

Total Resource Room

Total Special Education - lnstruction

Basic Skills/Remedial - lnstruction
Salaries of teachers
Other salaries for instruction
General supplies

Total Basic Skills/Remedial - lnstruc{ion

Bilingual Education - lnstruc{ion
Salaries of teachers

Total Bilingual Education - lnstruction

Summer School - lnstruction
Salaries of teachers
Other salaries for instruction
General supplies

Total Summer School - lnstruction

SchooFSponsored Cocunicular Ac{ - lnst.
Salaries
Supplies and materials

Total School-Sponsored Cocun. Act. - lnst

Undistributed Expenditures - lnstruction
Tuition to CSSD & Reg. Day Schools
Tuition to Private School for the Disabled

Original
Budqet

Budget
Transfers

Final
Budoet

Variance
Final to
Actual

$ 145,260
32,860
2,200

108,465
27,620

9,050

$ (36,808)
5,126
(573)

12,033
(21,665)

2,000
(5,610)

$ 108,452
37,986

1,627
120,458

5,955
2,000
3,440

Actual

$ 108,452
37,986

1,543
113,636

5,955
1,882
1,005

$

u
6,862

't 18
2,435

G5.4971 279r9-58

1,239,735

270,459

1,228,412

9,499

1,273,729 11,323

1 15,140
500 107

1 15,140
607

115,140
607

115,640 107 115,747 115,747

115,640 107 115.747 115,747

65,825

500

18,643

(107)

84,468

393

84,468

362 31

66,325 18,536 84,861 84,830 31

28,285 1,620 29,905 29,905

28.285 1,620 29.905 29,905

14,500
2,500

200

(4,296) 10,204
2,500

200

9,234
588
164

30,736 41364

970
1,912

36

2,918

4,364

71,568

17,200 (4,296) 12.9O4 9,986

35,1 00

35,100

35,100 30,736

35,100

97,500
43,565

29,459
(43.565)

't26i959 s5,391

Total Undistributed Expenditures - lnstruction 141 065 (14,106) 126,959

See Management's Discussion and Analysis seclion of this report for explanation of significant budget variances, original and final.

55,391 71,568
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c.l
CAPE MAY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

(Contlnuod frcm prior page)

Undistributed Expenditures - Attend. and Social Work
Purchased professiohal and technical seryices

Total Undistributed Expenditures - Attendance

Undistributed Expenditures - Health Services
Salaries
Purchased prof. and technical services
Supplies and materials

Total Undistributed Expenditures - Health Svcs.

Undist. Expend. - Speech, OT, PT & Rel. Serv.
Purchased prof. and educational services
Supplies and materials

Total Undst. Expend. - Speech, OT, PT & Rel. Serv

Undist. Expend. - Guidance
Salaries of other professional staff
Supplies and materials

Total Undst. Expencl. - Guidance

Undist. Expend. - Child Study Teams
Salaries of secretarial and clerical assistantg
Purchased professionaUeducational services
Supplies and materials

Total Undst..Expend. - Child Study Teams

Undist. Expend. - lmprovement of lnst. Services
Salaries of superuisor of instruction
Salaries of other professional staff
Salaries of secretarial and clerical assistants
Supplies and Materials

Total Undst. Expend. - lmprovement of lnst. Services

Undist. Expend. - Educ. Media Serv./Sch. Library
Salaries
Salaries of technology coordinators
Purchased prof/technical serviecs
Supplies and materials.

Original
Budget

Budget
Transfers

Final
Budset Ac{ual

Variance
Final to
Ac{ual

$ 4.800 $ $ 4,800 $ 4,755 $ 45

4,800 4,800 4,755 45

80,021
1,800
1,500

(22,196',)

1,266

58,425
1,800
2,766

54,208
1,600
2,766

4,217
200

83,921 (20,930) 62,991 58,574 4,417

48,301
2,500

48,301
2,500

48,301
2,500

50,801 50,801 50,801

39,000
500

33,824
103,362

1,500

(1,034)
13,331

QU\

32,790
116,693

1,296

37,962
562

38,524

32,790
114,628

1,296

148,714

75,036
13,402
5r431

53,482

99438,956(44)
62 562

39,500 18 39,518 994

138,686 12,093 150,779

2,065

2,065

75,036
13,402
5,900

75,036
13,402
5,900 469

94,338 94,338 93,809 469

45,722
8,500
3,600
3,800

8,344
(8,500)

54,066 584

3,600
3,956

2,462
3,349

1,138
607156

Total Undst. Expend, - Educ. Media Serv./Sch. Library il,a22 61,622 59,293

See Management's Discussion and Analysis section of this report for explanation of significant budget variances, original and final.

2,325

(CONTINUED TO NEXT PAGE)
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CAPE MAY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Generat Fund

Flscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

(Contlnuod from prior page)

Undist. Expend.- Supp. Seru. General Admin.
Salaries
Legal services
Audit Fees
Expenditure & lnternal Control Audit Fees
Architectural/Engineering Services
Other Purchased Professional Services
Communications / telephone
BOE Other Purchased Services
BOE ln-House training/meeting supplies
Miscellaneous expenditures
BOE membership dues and fees

Total Undst. Expend. - Supp. Serv. General Admin.

Undist. Expend.- Supp. Serv. School Admin.
Salaries of principals/assist. principals
Other purchased services
Supplies and materials
Other objec{s

Total Undst. Expend. - Supp. Serv. School Admin.

Undist. Expend. - Central Services
Salaries
Supplies and materials
Miscellaneous expenditures

Total Undst. Expend. - Central Services

Undist. Expend. - Admin. lnfo. Technology
Salaries
Purchased technical services

Total Undst. Expend..Admin. lnfo. Technology

Undist. Expend. - Required Maint. Sch. Facilities
Salaries
Cleaning, repair, and maintenance services
Lead Testing of Drinking Water
Supplies and materials

Total Undst. Expend. - Required Maint. Sch. Facilities

Undist. Expend. - Custodial Services
Salaries
Purchased professional & tech. services
lnsurance
Misc. purchased services
General supplies
Energy (natural gas)
Energy (eleclricity)
Energy (gasoline)
Other objects

12.800 (1.468) 11.332

12,800 (1,468) 11,332

Original
Budset

Budget
Tran'sfers

Final
Budoet Actual

Variance
Final to
Actual

4
272

3,085
188
291
550

$$23,156
(1,1 e4)
(1,100)

$

942
147

3,079
22,761

9,852
385

2,531

40,751

75,902
6,000

13,200
3,000

500
2,500

14,960
1,000

500
5,740
5,000

99,058
4,806

12,100
3,000

99,054
4,534

12,100
3,000

4,487
3,748

212
209

5,020
3,608

$

(500)
1;987

(8,1271
(600)

(170)
(1.3S2)

4,487
6,833

400
500

5,570
3,608

128,302 12,060 140,362 135,972 , 4,390

62,500
1,000
3,000
5,175

7,170
(775)
132

(157)

69,670
225

3,132
5,018

69,670
225

2,285
5,018

847

71,675 6,370 78,045 77,198 u7

75,308
1,500
1,900

1,565
(250)
250

76,873
1,250
2,150

76,873
1,250
1,801 349

78,708 1,565 80,273 79,924 349

10,084

10,084

1.248

1,248

54,172
103,350

750
1,000

(10,106)
54,172
93,244

750
1,000

159,272 (1 0.1 06) 149,166

54,076
61,165

,u2
1 15,883

87,965
540

33,214
503

27,711
19,239
38,148

115
14,595

96
32,079

750
358

33,283

90,655
856

34,340
150

17,000
50,000
48,000

500
12,800

(1,636)
(316)
(184)
500

13,790
(8,000)

4,326

89,019
540

34,156
650

30,790
42,000
48,000

500
17,126

1,054

Total Undst. Expend. - Custodial Services 254,301 8,480 262,781 222,030

See Management's Discussion and Analysis section of this report for explanation of significant budget variances, original and final.

73

(CONTINUEDTO NEXT PAG9



CAPE MAY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgotary Gomparlson Schedule

General Fund
Flscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

c-t

Variance
Final to
Actu,al

$ 74,034

281
3,200
5,293

'10,633

(Contlnued from prior page)

Undist. Expend. - Student Trans. Services
Sal. Of Non-lnstructional Aides
Contr, serv. (other than bet. home & sch.) - vendors
Contr. serv. (bet. home & sch.) - joint agreements
Contr. serv. (sp ed stds) - vendors
Contr. serv. (sp ed stds) - joint agreements

Total Undst. Expend. - Student Trans. Services

Unallocated Benefits - Employee Benefits
Social securily contributions
Other retirement contributions - PERS
Other retirement contributions - reg.
Unemployment compensation
Workmen's compensation
Health benefits
Tuition reimbursement
Other employee beneftis
Unused sick payments to terminated/retired staff

Equipment:
Undistributed Expenditures:

Required Maintenance for School Facilities
Security

Original
Budget

Budget
Transfers

Final
Budget Actual

Total Undst. Expend. - Oper. & Maint. of Plant Services $ 413,573 $ (1,626) $411,947 $337,913

6,618
3,?00

20,322
18,700
32,000

(2,e00)

(6,300)
32,300

(32,000)

(8,900)

3,718
3,200

14,O22
51,000

3,437

8,729
40,367

80,840 71,940 52,533 19,407

40,964
27,000

15,000
23,000

500,867
15,000
49,408
30,000

7,826
(1 18)

5,734
(3,472)
8,495

58,62'l
(2,470)

(18,895)
(30,000)

48,790
26,882
5,734

11,528
31,495

559,488
12,530
30,513

726,960

48,708
26,882

5,734
11,528
31,495

559,279
10,654
28,361

82

209
1,876
2,152

25,721 722,641 4,319Total Unallocated Benefits - Employee Benefits 701,239

On-behalf TPAF pension contributions (non-budgeted)
On-behalf TPAF post retirement medical (non-budgeted)
On-behalf TPAF - LTDI (non-budgeted)
Reimbursed TPAF social security contrlbutions (non-budgeted)_

Total Undistributed Expenditures - TPAF

Total Undistributed Expenditures 2.101.870

Total General Curent Expense 3.638,149

EXPENDITURES:
CAPITAL OUTLAY:

10,797 2.112.667 2.401.011 (288,344)

0.230t 3,630,919 3,900,627 (269,708)

218,647
141,220

298
114,660

(218,6471
(141,220)

(2e8)
(1 14,660)

(474,923\

13,359
13,434

15,000
13,931

15,000
13,931

1,Ul
497

Total Equipment 28,931 28,931

See Management's Discussion and Analysis section of this report for explanation of significant budget variances, original and final,

2,138 26,793
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CAPE MAY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetary Comparlson Schedule

General Fund
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

95,846
3,161

55,024
3,161

c.t

Variance
Final to
Actual

$ 40,822

(Continued from prior page)

Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services
Other Purchased Prof and Tech Services
Assessment for Debt Service on SDA Funding

Total Facilities Acquisition and Construc{ion Services

Total Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures:

Other Financing Sources:
Operating Trinsfer Out - Food Service Fund

Total Other Financing Sources

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other
Financing Sources Over (Under) Expenditures
and Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Fund Balance, July 1

Fund Balance, June 30

Recapitulation of Fund Balance
Restricled Fund Balance:

Capital Reserve
Maintenance Reserve
lmpact Aid Reserve

Gommited Fund Balance
Year End Encumbrances

Assigned Fund Balance
Designated for Subsequent Years Expenditures

Unassigned Fund Balance

Reconciliation on Govemmental Fund Statements (GAAP):
Less: State Aid Payrnent not Recognized on GAAP Basis

Fund Balance per Government Fund (GMP)

Original
Budset

Budget
Transfers

Final
Budqet

$ 100,000
3,161

$ (4,154) $ $

103,161 (4,1541 99,007 40,822

671615

(202,093)

(19,000)

(19,000)

58,185

132,092 @.1541 127,938 60,323

3.770.241 (11 .384) 3,758,857 3,960,950

(673,500) (673,500) 511,237 1,184,737

(19.000)

( 9,000)

(692,500)

1,729,971

(1 9,000)

(19,000)

$ 1,037,471 $

(692,500) 511,237 1,203,737

1,725,971 1,729,971

$ 1,037,471 $ 2,241,208 $ 1,203,737

$ 814
100,098
700,013

117,412

930,967
391,904

2,241,208

(50,763)

$ 2,190,445
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c-2
CAPE MAY CITY SCHOOL D]STR]CT

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Speclal Revenue Fund

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Original
Budset

Budget
Transfers

Final
Budset

Variance
Final to
Actual

REVENUES:
State sources
Federal sour@s

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
lnstruc{ion:

Salaries of teachers
Purchase ProfTech
Tuition
Other purchased services
General supplies

Total instruction

Support services:
Personal servi@s - employee benefits
Other purchased services
Travel
Supplies and Materials

Total support services

Facilities acquisition and const. serv.:
lnstructional equipment

Total facilities acquisition and const. serv.:

Total expenditures

Total outflows

Excess (Deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures and other financing sources (uses)

$ 95,007
129,420

$
60,449

$ 95,007
189,869

Ac'tual

$ 95,007
189,869

168,587
3,000

57,009

9,167

$

224,427 60,449 2U,876 284,876

171,487

45,120

216,607

(2,e00)
3,000

1 1,889

9,167

168,587
3,000

57,009

9,167

21.156 237,763 237,763

7,820
20,300

(840)

1,000

20,300
6,980

1,000

20,300
6,980

1,000

7,820 20,460 28,280 28,280

18,833 18.833 18,833

r8,833 18,833 18,833

221,427 60,449 284,878 284,876

224,427 60,449 284,876 284,876

$ $ $ $ $
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c.3
CAPE MAY CIry SCHOOL DISTRICT

Notes to Required Supplementary lnformation
Budgetary Comparison

Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and GAAP
Revenues and Expenditures

General
Fund

Special
Revenue

Fund

Sources/inflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenue"

from the budgetary comparison schedules
Difference - budget to GMP:

Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that
encumbrances are recognized as expenditures, and the
related revenue is recognized.

The last State aid payment for the prior year is recognized
as revenue for GAAP purposes and differs from budgetary basis
which recognized this revenue in the prior year.

The last State aid payment is recognized as revenue for
6udgetary purposes and differs from GAAP which does not
recognizes this revenue until the subsequent year when the
State recognizes the related expense (GASB 33)

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances -
governmental funds.

Uses/outflowe of resourcea
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total expenditures" from

the budgetary comparison schedule
Differences - budget to GAAP

Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but not
received is reported in the year the order is placed for budgetrary
purposes, but in the year the supplies are received for financial
reporting purposes.

Total expenditures as rdported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental funds

$ 4,472,187 $ 284,876

50,563 6,622

(50,763) (9,501)

$ 4.471 ,987 $ 28',t.997

$ 3,960,950 $ 284,876

$ 3,960,950 $ 284,876
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L-t
CAPE IUAY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Requlred Supplementary lnformauon

Schodulo of tho Dbtdcfs Proportionate Sharo ofthe Net Penslon Liabillty
Public Employoer Retlremont Sy3tem

Last Flve Fbcal Yoarr

June 30, June 30,

2016
June 30,

20't7
June 30,

2015
June 30,

20'14
Districts proponion oflhe net pension

liability (asset)

Districts prcportionato share of the net
pension liability (a$et)

Districf s covered-employoe pafoll

District s pmportionate sharo of lhe net
pension liability (asset) as a percentago

of its covered-employoe payroll

Plan tiduciary net position as a perc€ntiags

of tho totial peneion liability

2018

0.0028242867% 0.0028805056% 0.0027185222% 0.0018551999% 0.0039536573%

$ $ $ $457,449

237,151

27714%

34.78%

853,123

207,887

410.38%

31.20%

610,2il

196,958

309.84%

38.21%

347,344

183,842

188.94%

42.74.yo

755,622

189,026

399.75%

40.71%

$

This schedul€ doq3 not contain ten years of lnformation as

GASB 08 was implemented during the fiscal lrear
onded June 30,2015.
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L-2
CAPE MAY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Requlr€d Supplementary lnfomation
Schedule of the Dlstdcfs Contributions
Public Employeg3 Retlrcment System

Last Five Fiscal Years

June 30,

2018

June 30,

2017
June 30,

2016

June 30, June 30,

2014

Contraclually required contribution

Contributions in relation to the contrac{ually

required contributions

Contribution defic:iency (excoss)

Distric{8 cover€Gemployee payroll

Contributlons aB a percentage of
covered-employee payroll

2015

$ 29,890 $ 26,882 $ 25,590$23,372$15,294

(29,090) (26,882) (25,590) (23,172\ (r5,2s4)

$ $ $ $

This schedule doeE not contain ten y6ars of information as

GASB 68 was impl€mented during the fiscalyear
ended June 30,2015.

237,191

12.520h

207,887

12.93./o

'196,958

12.99%

183,842

12.71%

189,026

8.09%
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L-3

CAPE MAY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Requlr€d Supplomentary hformation

Schedule ofthe Dlstrlcfs Prcportionate Shal€ ofthe N.t Ponslon Llabillty
TeacheE Ponsion and Annulty Fund

Dislricts proportion of tho not pension

lieblllty (asset)

Distrlc'fs proportionate sharc of lhe net
ponsion liabllity (a$et)

Stato'e pmpor{onate shar€ of the net pension liability (asset)

associated with lhe Distict

Total

District's covered-employee payroll

Distrist s proporlionate share of tho not
pension liability (asset) as a percentage

of ib covered-employee payoll

Plan fiduciary net position ae a porcontggo

of the total penslon liability

This schedule doog not contiain ten years df infomation as

GASB 68 was lmplemonted during tho fiscal year

ended June 30,2015.

Jun6 30,

0.0141587944% 0.01/14438971% O.O15241Ail4% 0.0152518190% O.O1ilO10277Vo

$

June 30,

2018

June 30,

2017
June 30,

2016

June 30,
2015

$ $ $ s

$ 9,5,{6,370 ,362,489$9,633,381$8,151,80107,783,558

$ 9,546,370 $ 11,362,489 0 9,633,381 $ 8,151,601 $ 7,783,558

1,600,701 1,5',t1,342 1,409,569 1,458,772 1,499,909

0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

25.41% 22.33o/o 28.71% 38.64% 33.76%

$ lt
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CAPE MAY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of the State's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability Associated with the Dlstrict
and Changes in the Total OPEB Liability and Retated Ratios

Public Employee's Retirement System and Teachers'Pension and Annuity Fund
Gurrent FiscalYear

June 30,

2018
State's proportion of the net OPEB liability (asset)

associated with the District

M-1

0.020/o

$ 9,646,738

$ 9,646,738

0.00o/o

June 30,

201 I

326,151

303,793

(1,208,100)

8,228
(223,439)

(7e3,367)

10,440,105

$ 9,646,738

1,837,892

District's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability

State's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability
associated with the District

Total proportionate share of the net OPEB liability (asset)

associated with the District

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
OPEB Liability

TotalOPEB Liability

Service Cost

lnterest

Changes of assumptions and other inputs
Member Contributions

Benefit payments

Net Change in total OPEB Liability

Total OPEB Liability - beginning

Total OPEB Liability - ending

District's covered-employee payroll

Total OPEB Liability as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll

$

$

$

$

This schedule does not contain ten years of information as
GASB 75 was implemented during the fiscalyear
ended June 30,2018.
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Cape May City School District
Notes to Required Supplementary Information

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

1. Teacher's Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF)

Changes of benefit term: The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 18A:66. TPAF provides
retirement, death and disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical
benefits, which vest after 25 years of service or under the disability provisions of TPAF. Members are

always fully vested for their own contributions and, after three years of service credit, become vested for
2o/o of related interest earned on the contibutions. In the case of death before retirement, members'
beneficiaries are entitled to full interest credited to the members' accounts.

Changes of assumptiozs.' Pre-retirement, post-retirement and disabled mortality rates were based on the
experience of TPAF members reflecting mortality improvement on a generational basis based on a 60-yeat
average ofSocial Security data from 1953 to 2013.

2. Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS)

Changes of bene/it term: Thevesting and beneht provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 43:154. PERS provides
retirement, death and disability benefits. All benefils vest after ten years of service, except for medical
benefits, which vest after 25 years of service or under the disability provisions of PERS.

Changes of assurnptions: Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Employee Pre-
retirement Mortality Table for male and female active employees. For State employees, mortality tables are

set back 4 years for males and females. For local employees, mortality tables are set back 2 years for males

and 7 years for females. In addition, the tables provide for future improvements in mortality from the base

year of 2013 using a generational approach based on the plan actuary's modified MP-2014 projection scale.

Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Male and Female Mortality
Tables (set back I year for males and females) for service retirements and beneficiaries of former members

and'a one-year static projection based on mortality improvement Scale AA. In addition, the tables for
service retirements and beneficiaries of former members provide for future improvements in mortality from
the base year of 2013 using a generational approach based on the plan actuary's modified MP-2014
projection scale. Disability retirement rates used to value disabled retirees were based on the RP-2000

Disables Mortality Table (set back 3 years for males and set forward I year for females).

3. Other Post-Retirement Plan - Public Employees' Retirement System and Teachers' Pension and
Annuity Fund

Changes of benefit term: There were none.

Changes of assumptiozs.' The discountrate changed fuom2.85Yo as of June 30,2016to3.85% as of June

30,2017.
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CAPE IJIAY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Special Revenue Fund

Combining Statement of Revenues and Expenditurcs
Budgetary Basis

forthe Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

No Child Left Behind N.C.L.B.) lndividiuals With Disabilities Act (l.D.E.A.

E-1A

Total

95,007
189,869

244.476

168,5E7
3,000

57,009

9.167

763

20,300
6,980
1.000

2A2AO

18.833

18 833

284,876

REVENUES:
State sources
Federal sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
lnstruc{ion:

Salaries of Teachers
Purciase ProfTech
Tuition
Other Purchased Services
Genenal Supplies

Total instruction

Support seMes:
Personal Services - Employee Benefits
Other Purchased Services
Supplies

Total support servies

Facilities acquisition and const. serv.:
lnstruc'tional equipment

Total facilities acquisition and const. serv.:

Total Expenditures

Excess (Defciency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures and other financing soures (uses)

$

Title I

Current Year

93.897

93 897

72,500

562

73.562

20,300

20.335

93 897

Title ll - PartA
Cunent Year

$
8.025

8.025

'1,080

I OaO

6,945

6_945

8.025

Title lV- PartA Part I - Basic
Cunent Year Cunent Year

$
10.000 57 009

10.000 57-009

2,500
57,009

6 500

9.000 57.009

1,000

1 000

10,000 57.009

rs $

Part B - Preschool
Current Year

$
2.105

2.'tos

2,105

2,105

2'tos

s

Brought Forward
E1B

$ 9s,007 $
1a 833

1 13,640

95,007

95.007

18.833

18.833

113.840

o
o)

500

35

$ $



E-IB
CAPE MAY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Special Revenue Fund
Combining Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

Budgetary Basis
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

@{

REVENUES:
State sources
Federal sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
lnstruclion:
Salaries of Teachers
Tuition
Oher Purchased Services
General Supplies

Total instruclion

Support seruices:

-Personal Services - Employee Benefits
Other Purchased Services
Supplies

Total support seruices

Facilities acquisition and const. serv.:
lnstruc-tional equ ipment

Total facilities acquisition and const. serv.:

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures and other financing sources (uses)

REAP
Cunent Year

't8.833

18.833

18.833

18.833

18.833

Preschool
Education

Aid

$ 95,007 $

95 007

95,007

95.007

95.007

$

Total

95,007
18.833

113.840

95,007

95.007

18.833

18.833

113.840

$ $ s



E-2

CAPE MAY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Speclal Revenue Fund
Statement of Preschool Education Aid

Budgetary Basis

for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

District-Wde Total

Budgeted Variance
EXPENDITURES:

lnstruction:
Salaries of teachers
Other salaries for instruction

Total lnstruction

Support Services:
Salaries of supervisor of instruction
Personal Services - Employee Benefits

Total support services

Total expenditures

Actual

$ 95,007 $ 95,007 $

95,007 95,007

$ 95,007 $ 95,007 $

CALCULATION OF BUDGET AND CARRYOVER

Total Revised 2017-20'18 Preschool Education Allocation
Add: Actual Preschool Ed Aid Carryover (June 30, 2017)

Total Preschool Education Aid Funds Available for 2017-2018
Less: 2017-2018 Budgeted Preschool Education Aid

(lncluding prior year budgeted carryover)

Avaihbb & Unbudgeted Preschool Education Funds
as ofJune 30,2018

Add: June 30, 2018 Unexpended Preschool Education Aid

2017-2018 Preschool Education Aid Carryover

2017-20'18 Preschool Education Aid Carryover
Budgeted for Preschool Programs in 2018-19

$ 95,007

95,007

(95,007)

$

$,
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Capital Projects Fund

Detail Statements



CAPE MAY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
CapitalProjects Fund

Summary Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balance . Budgetary Basis

For the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2018

F-1

$ 149

149

149

$ 149

Revenues and Other Financing Sources:
State Aid - SDA Grant
Transfer from capital outlay
Total revenues and other financing sources

Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses):
Purchased professional services
Construction services
Total expenditures and otherfinancing (uses)

Excess (deficiency) or revenues over (under) expenditures

Fund Balance - July 1, 2017

Fund Balance - June 30, 2018
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CAPE MAY CITY SCHOOL DISTRIGT
Gapital Projects Fund

Statement of Project Revenues, Expenditures, Project Balance,
and ProjectStatus - Budgetary Basis
Elementary School - Security Upgnde

From Inception and for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2018

Prior Periods Current Year Total

F.la

Revised
Authorized

Costs

11,196
16,571

27,767

2,998
24,620

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
State sources - SCC Grant
Transfer from capital outlay

Total revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing U$es:
Purchased professional services
Construction services

Excess (deficiency) or revenues over
(under) expenditures

Additional project information:
Project Number
Grant Date
Bond Authorization Date
Bonds Authorized
Bonds lssued
Original Authorized Cost
Additional Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost

Percentage lncrease over Original
Authorized Cost

Percentage Completion
Original target completion date
Revised target completion date

$ 11,047
16,571

27,618

2,998
24,620

27,618

$

071 0-050-09-2001
06/09/10
N/A
N/A
N/A
$46,250

$o
$27,618

0.00%
100.00%
12t31t09
12t31tog

$ 149 $ 11,196
16,571

149
+

27,767

2,998
24,620

$

27,618. 27,618

$ 149 $ 149 _$ 1.19_
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Detail Statements



G-1

CAPE MAY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Enterprise Funds

Statement of Net Position
as of June 30, 2018

Child Care
ram

Food
Service Total

ASSETS:
Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable:

State
Federal

lnventories

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets:
Equipment
Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Total Fixed Assets

TotalAssets

LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:

Unearned Revenue
lnterfund Payable

Total Current Liabilities

NET POSITION:
Net lnvestment in CapitalAssets
Unreserved Retained Earnings

Total Net Position

$ 8,639 $ 101 ,261 $ 109,900

62
4,089
3,491

62
4,089
3,491

8,639 108,903 117,542

9,964
(8,392)

9,964
(8,3e2)

1 572 1,572

$ 8,639 $ 110,475 $ 119.114

8,560
78

69,915
78

78,475

8,560 69,993 78,553

79

79$ 40.482

1,572

, 38,989

$ 40,561

1,572
38,910

$

93



G-2

CAPE MAY CITYSCHOOL DISTRICT
Enterprise Funds

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2018

Child Care
Program

Food
Service Total

OPERATING REVENUES:
Local sources:

Daily sales-reimbursable programs

Total-daily sales-reimbursable programs

Daily sales non-reimbursable programs
Special functions
Program fees
Miscellaneous

Total operating revenue

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries
Employee benefits
Supplies and materials
Depreciation
Repairs and Maintenance
Other purchased services
Miscellaneous
Cost of Sales - reimbursable programs
Cost of Sales - nonreimbursable programs

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Non-operating revenues:
State sources:

State school lunch program
Federal sources:

National school lunch program
National school breakfast program

U.S.D.A. commodities
lnterest revenue

Total non-operating revenues

Net income (loss) before transfers
Other Financing Sources and Uses:

Operating transfers in

Change in Net Position
Net Position - July 1

$ $ 21,695 $ 21,695

6,974
7,800

21,695

3,976
15

21,695

3,976
15

6,974
7,800

14,774 25,686 40,460

14,239
1,089

35,810
2,739

299
553

3,724
38,254

349
36,909

1,530

50,049
3,828

299
553

3,724
38,2U

349
36,909

1,530

15,328 120,167 135,495

(554) (94,481) (95,035)

995 995

39,805
25,408

9,306
43

39,805
25,408
8,306

452

2

(552) (19,924)

74,557 74,559

(20,476)

(552)
631

(19,924)
60,406

(20,476)
61,037

Net Position - June 30

94

$ 79 $ 40,482 s 40,561



G-3

GAPE MAY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Enterprise Funds

Statement of Cash Flows
forthe Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2018

Child Care
Proqram

Food
Service Total

$ 31,944
Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash receipts from customers
Cash payments to employees for services
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services

Net cash used by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers to other funds
Cash received from state and federal reimbursements

Net cash provided by noncapitalfinancing activities

Cash flows from capital financing activities:
Purchases of fixed assets

Net cash used by capital financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
lnterest on investments

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, July 1

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided
(used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation
Federal commodities
Change in assets and liabilities:

(l ncrease)/decrease in inventory
(lncrease)/decrease in accounts receivable
lncrease/(decrease) in interfund payable
lncrease/(decrease) in unearned revenue

$ 6,974 $ 24,970

(34,695) (34,6e5)

6,974 (9,725\ (2,7511

(68,441)
69,559

(68,2[41)

69,559

1,118 _ 1,118

2 43 45

2 43 45

6,976

1,663

(8,564)

109,825

(1,588)

111,488

$ 8,639 $ 101,261 $ 109,900

$ (554) $ (e4,481) $ (e5,035)

553
8,306

64

76,549
(716)

553
8,306

64

7,528 84,077
(716)

Net cash used by operating activities

95

$ 6,s74 $ (9,72s) $ (2,751)



Fiduciary Funds
Detail Statements



H-t

CAPE MAY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Fiduciary Funds

Combining Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2018

Agency Funds
Employee Benefit

Trust Funds

Payroll

Unemployment
Compensation
lnsurance Fund Total

ASSETS:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

LIABILITIES:
Payroll Deductions Payable
Accounts Payable
lnterfund Payable

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION

Reserved for Unemployment Claims

Total Net Position

$ 50,321 $ 11,674 $ 61,995

$ 50,321 $ 11,674 $ 61,995

25,420

24,901

25,420

24,901

50 321 321

11,674 11 674

$ 11,674 $ 11,674$

9V
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CAPE MAY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Fiduciary Fund

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2018

REVENUES

Local sources:
Employee contributions
lnterest on investments

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current Expense:
U ndistributed Expenditures:

Unemployment claims

Total Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures)

Net Position July 1,2017

Net Position June 30,2018

Employee Benefit
Trust Funds

Unemployment
Compensation
lnsurance Fund

$ 14,914

14,914

$ 10,970

10,970

3,944

7 730

$ 11,674

98



H4

CAPE MAY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Payroll Agency Fund

Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements
for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2018

Balance
Julv 'l,2017

Balance
June 30, 2018

ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

LIABILITIES:

Payroll deductions
and withholdings

Net payroll
lnterfund payable

Total liabilities

Additions Deletions

$ 31,445 $ 2,394,722 $ 2,375,846 $ 50,321

$ 31,445 $ 2,394,722 _$___?,3?1!4_ $ 50,321

$ $ 939,457
1,341,433

'113,832

$ 915,136
1,341,433

119,277

$1,099

30,346

25,420

24,901

$ 31,445 $ 2,394,722 $ 2,375 .846 $ 50,321

oo
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qpc llryclty School Dl.blct
l{et Porl0oo hr Compon.ng

(Mual!€,strofMnW)

Govemmental Acdvlties:
Net lnv€stmsnt in Capital Assets
R€stided fon

Sp€ciel Rev€nue
Capital Priads
Other Purpoees

UnGstict€d
Total Golremm€ntal Activities Net Position

Busine$-Typ€ AdiyitiEs:
Net lnvesbn€nt in Cepital Assets
Unrssficlsd

Toisl Busin€seTyp€ Activifle3 Net Position

Dislrict-Wda:
Net lnvestm€'nt in Capital AsEets
Rostictod:

Special Rev€nus
Capilal P'oirct3
Other Purpcaes

Unr€sflctad
Total Distrtct N€t Position

Fiscal YEar Ending June 90,

2m9 2010 ?f1'l

s 1,990,488 $ 1,877,400 $ 1,806,878

(3,197) (3,197) (3,02s)
75,590 75,662

526,636 1,290,355 1,065,653

2012 2013 _ 2914 a15 2016+

g 1,713,775 S 1,663,528 $ 1,572,9118 $ 1,4s4,960 E 1,433,367

(10,077)
914

550,455

ExhlHt J-l

m17 z)18

$ 1,381,120 $ 1,350,142

(6,6"2) (e,50r)
. 814 96it

1,092,018 1,S4S,490
e76.527t (525.8261

$ 2.191.603 $ 2_884.26C:-
916.389 1o1.1u U.23P, 360!91_TEffi- TEiE- TT56t3O. -5-,fio-:F __l99.Eg = =(!99,e??) , t17?.s7t (ir1,385)

_s__3p1LL19q_ _!_3J19E82_ $ iF'|'5ir -$--T€6s-ir

$ 1,993,479

(3,197)

525,€36

E 1,879,3/tit

(q1e7)

1,290,355 1,065,653

(2,1781
75,688

953,568

(2,4781
75,688

953,568

(3,366)
75,7n

935,650

(3,306)
75,723

905,650

(4,31e)
75,753

606,192

(4,319)
75,753

606,192

G0azl
75,7U

445,960

(6,622)
75,7U

44!t,963

8 1,438,045

(10,(l77)
814

55O,1155

$ 1,38t!,245

(6,622)
814

1,092,618

$ 1,351,714

(9,501)
g€tt

1,84E,490

3 2,99r I r,943 I 't,723 t 4,891 S 4,338 0 3,784 $ q231 $ 2,678 t 2,125 S 1,572

o
8,127 4,128

$ 11.118 $ 6.071
. 2,655 10,084 10,887
$ 4374 I 14.975 $ 15.225

3.252 9.772
s 7.0i16 $ 13.003

. 29,3til 58,912 38,980
$ 32,009 $ 61.q!7 t 20.561

$ 1,808,601 $ 1,718,666 3 1,667,866 0 1,576,732 $ 1,498,191

(3,028)
75,662

. .n4,516 16,272 a24,87
_E_9!11.49j_ _9___94j.ll3_ _E_jn?i{

370.448 150.s47
$ 3.115.892 $ 2.A26.420 = =l?1,119) q6?,7?5) , JE,0?4) (217.415t (4s6,837)

_$_ ?q.aE_ _$ l.54sj4_ t tEeslm @ T..fiffi



Crpe ilry Ctty School Distrlct
Chrngs ln Net Poai6on, lrstTen Fl$al Year3
(ffiual basis of a@unling)

Expenaea:
Govemnenbl adivities:

lnsfuctrion:
Rsgular
Special education
Otherinstudion

Support SEMces:
Tufion
Student& insfudion l€latod seruic
School administativE serviceg
General and busingss administrative s€rvices
Plant ope€lioffi and mainbnanog
Pupil transportation
Unallocabd employs benetrts

lntsGst on long-bni debt
Umllocat€d dopr€ciation

Total govemmontal aclivities oeenses

2ms 2010 2011

ExhibitJ-2

Fiscal Year Ending Jure 30,

2012 2013 2015 m16 2017 2018

s 1,212,101
75,309

113,9i0

36,060
33,9,277
53,C4

183,334
435,893

18,934
596,480

$ 1,1108,535
156,120
82,984

9,124
4t6,082
52,74

182,509
449.,175
60,076

63/.,U2

$ 1.45/2s2
135,315
75,5U

2,255
377,209

58,973
206,649
386,030
77,ffi

710,531

$ 1,320,931
201,479
161,915

37E,73t]
54,907

192,094
41 1,389
16,3C

805,634

$ 1,405,163
174.612
135,795

63,881
M,282

54,581
178,890
357,424
63,840

914,357

$ 1.253.104
186,529
187,810

170,479
417,61

61,758
187,707
$1,714
71,93

883,052

$ 1,312,897
171,441
157,194

89,986
416,911

60,446
186,199
388,5S0

55,063
w,717

1,270jU
203,',t76
197,190

88,431

\ 2152.330

61,667
186,721
3%,742

53,207
908,577

$ 1,1138,810
168,574
74,871

122,621
470,@7
58,878

206,117
388,374

70,351
1,123,291

I 1,462,681
117,852
't55,457

112,4@
2162,510

77,18
2n,o55
3$,4@

52,538
2,383,378

3,039
5,455,505

$

4:,727 5,86't 4,5V. 4,32. 4,512 7,630 3,899 3,080 2,910
3,069,969 3,477,88 3,489,106 3,il7,7 3,798,537 3,788,437 3,659,343' 3,A21,285 4,127,aU

Busiress-type aclivitis:
Food service

r Child€EDmEm
$ fotrtuusiness-typi"ci"itio"rp"n."

Total district €xpens€s

7qW 97,465 a4,u7 84,851 81,1/a 98,066 112,@1 105,936 11o4s 1m,$7
20,143 18,15g 12,W. 13,6:]8 1A,627 20,806 14,W 18,852 14,8tlt 15,328

,7A7 115,624 97,339 98,/A9 99,775 11A,672 126,535 124,7a9 125,059 135,495

_g_u!9,299_ _$___389942_ _!___9E994_ _$___9,649!99_ _$ 3,8s8,3r2_ _$_9EZp99_ _S_949,929_ _!___9E989_ _9___4,252.9/,3_ _$ q!$999_

94,666 112,49€. 1m,262
$ ?32,085 $ 583,462 $ 689,622

Prognm Rmu€:
GovsmmEntal adivitis:

Op€rating grants and contributions

Total govsmmenbl activitis program revenues

Businesstp€ activites:
Charges br servicas:

Food sgrvicE
Child cal€ proqram

Op€rating gEnts and contribulions
Capibl granb and contiMions

Total bGiness typ€ activities prcgram r€vsnues
Total distid program rcvenues

ilet (ExpeEeYRMnrc:

BusinEsglyp€ activities
Total disfid{ride not E)pensE

396,270 47q4ffi

------36m'- ----aw
359,720 28i7,301.

359,720 7,301

457,559

45?559

137,419 470,970 563,360 660,564 1,S|3,738

13ir41e -----AdW --3J60 66oF64 ----];dffi

$ $ $ $ E s $ $ $20,907
18,154
49,565

23,44
14,1&
71,033

21,24
18,109
47,893

20,rts:]
18,457
57,2@

20,870
16,894
52,652

17,81
12,835
63,850

17,@7
20,663
73,532

19,733
'13,483

93,0{6

25,988
'13,24
96,329

25,686
u,n4
74,514

s

- ss,626 i08.613 ------3ZtC5'- ------Em- ------E:ZiE'-
$ 484.896 $ 584.039 $ 447.005 $ 363.420 $ 547.975

'135,541 114,974
$ 796,105 S 2,0/.8,712

(8,161) (7,O1't) (10,054) (2,370) (9,359) (24.2061 (14,043) 1,474 1O,&. (2O,521t

_9 e,681,869t _9 (3,me,4391 _9_(3.13s,44ol _9_{3,282,869t _9 6,35o,992t _9_19,9!92!L _$_€?q249I _!__19?gq4ll _S__1949q!99t _!_(3,542.288t

$(2,673,69€) E(3,W.,4221 0(3,129,386) $(3;280,495) $(3,30,978) $(3,6si,018) $(3,188,373) $(3,257,925) $(3,ur67,320) $(3,521,76n

(Condnued)



Clpe Mry Clty School Dbtrlc{
ChNnga ln Net PGltlon, ]:sf Ten Flsc{ Yeal8
(affiuat basis d affiunting)

General Rsnuea rnd Other Chrngg ln Net Pcltlon:
Govemn€nhl aclivities:

Prcperty tares levied for general purposs, net
Unrs€ticbd grants and contibutions
lnwstrnont eamings

TransGrs
Total govsmmsntal act'viti€s

Businesetype aclivities:
lnvesttnent eamingg
Transbrs

Tobl business-type activities
Total disltic!'vide

Ch.nge in Net Poslt'ron:
Govemmsntal adivities
Busines-type aclivilies

T.otal distici{ids

2009 2010 2011 2012 2!13 2014 2A15 m16

Erhlblt J-2

2017 2018

$ 1,/43,921
1,596,252

25,600
27,551

$ 1,483,921
1,374,538

30,016
26,866

$ 1,€3,921
1,390,853

23,84
65,572

$ 1,43,921
1,655,n3

87,240

$ 1,1183,921

1,532,289
35

'1,67

$ 1,5r3,s99
1,415,m

1,767

41,2@.

$ 1,574,143
1,7@,U7

63
68,288

$ 1,731,557
1,822.,&

30
48,0:]0

$ 1,804282
1,987,533

23
2.,411

1,849,389
2,100,524

21

44,494

45
_$___3,es4z_

ls,z,8l (1,943) (8,343) (12,e4s) (s,5s9) (16,cEo) (20,000) (17,500) (18,500)
3,524,096 2,9'13,398 2,955,491 3,214,015 3,@8,513 2,959,405 3,33't,'141 3,584,581 3,795,749 3,9st,432

il 21 10 17 10
9,2A 1,943 8,343 1zW 9,599 16,000 20,000
9,292 1,964 8,361 12,57 9,609 16,017 20,010

$ 3,533,388 $ 2,915,362 $ 2,963,852 $ 3,226,982 $ 3,018,122 $ 2,975,422 $ 3,351,151

$850,397$(89,024)$(173,89s)$(66,480)$(332,455)$(691,613)$142,768$326,656$328,rr29$472,66s

456322.18
18,500
18,546

_$___9pt!t99_

17,s00
17,532

_9_399?J13_

1,131 (5,O4n (1,603) 't0,597 250 (8,'t89) 5,967 19,006 29,028 (20,4761

_g-851'52g- _$____€3E1I _s___!4i99l _!____$q!99I _9_€322!-91 _9 6ee,802t _g___-119J!9_ _$____319!9?_ _!_____992!9L _!____!9?J!9_

o(r)



Cap. try Clty Schoot Dbtrlct
Fund Ba|rncaa, Gov.mmen[.] Funda
lrst Trn Flrcd YorE
(n cdift€d a@ual E* d @nung)

General Fund:
ReseNsd for

Endrmbrances
Capitelt€$ne
Maintenancs tgg€ne
Emerg€ncy €s€rve
lmpad Aid rgs€rw

Unraservsd - designatod for subsoquent
yeafs exp€nditures

Unc$ruEd

Total$n€raltund

Ail Other Gowmm€ntd Funds
Rsssrvsd:

Englmbfancas
Unrsgerved, r€portsd in:

Sp€dal r€vonuefund
Capital p]ojeds tund
Debt servics fund

Tolal ail other govemmsntal funds

1,290,355 806,611 700,652 735,OOO252,935 419,830 534,895 283.809

I 1.61s.860 3 1.s61.1.t5+ € -$--lEg1,19L l__139!,1!?_

ErhlbltJ-3

Fiscal Year Ending June 3{r,

2m9 20i0 2011 2012 ?o13 ^1^ $18

3,552
75,314

47,770
1.062.878

$ 1.589.514
G

$

$

I

$ s I

$

75,590
I,O42

75,662
200,0u)
50,(n0

2,916
75,688

2m,@0
50,000

650
75,7?3

150,000
50,000

75,753
50,q28
50,000

75,7U
4

50,m0

s$ $

507,338
699.046

3 1.250.315

t,r
88

'13,9t 1

lo0,m3

678,506
585.976

_$__L679lgg-

t-
814

100,098

700,013

9:t0,907
u1,141

I 2.073.0*r

-

81.1

68
13,049

506,164 395,915(28.768! W.sz.

$ 653.177 $ 868.669

os
$I 3 $ $ $ I 117,412

(9,501)
149

(3,1e7) (3,rs7) (3,028) (2,478' (3,366) (4,319) (6,622) (r0,077) F,e2)

l---glgt -$----J9,l9zI l--lqe?gl -9--elz91 -$--r!,999r -9--sE9r -!-l9E4r _!__r9,9ZZr g-Jg€3t _t____j99!qs_



Cape May Clty School Dlrtrlct
Ch.nges ln Fund Balances, Gonernmentsl Funda,
L.stTen Fltcrl YeaF
(flrdffid ac''tual ,€.ds ot affiuntingl

Revenuea
Tillevy
Tultion cfiarges
lntersst oarhings
Misc€llaneous
State sources
F€deral sources

Total rwenue

Expenditurs€
lnstruction

Regular lnsEuction
Sp€dal educatlon lnslruction
Other lnstruciion

Support Servicos:
Tultlon
Stud€nt & lnslruc{ion related sel.ioes
G€neral and trusiness admin.servkEs
Sdrool administratiw sel.ices
Central SeMces
Plant operations and maintenanco
Pupil transportation

I Umilocated employee bon€fit3
Capr'talou0ay
Debt serv'rce:

Prindpal
lnterest and oth€r.iarges

Totrl ereenditur€s
Erce$s (D€ficiency) ot ravenues

ovef (under) €rp€nditufes
Other Fimndng Sources (Uses):

Transfe6 in
Transfer8 out

Total o0lerfinancing sourc6s (uses)

N€t change in fund balances

2mo
Fiscal Year Endlng Jun€ 30,
2010 m1l

E$ibitJrl

2012 nB _ m14 ?q15 2016 2017 2018+

1,99?,??4 1,1e4,264 1,164,808
3,929,594 3,401,814 3,323,554

t'2j8i71? !,?99,19q 765,e63 l,3ri!3,341
3,494,261 3,s18,4i4 sj123r4 - A@ITI

1,380,387 1.613.573 1.732.683
4,1 ,41 4,174,813 4,754,f3t

$ 1,483,921
25,6m
10,16{i
17,386

758,568

I,166,203
75,309

113,930

$ 1,€3,921
30,016
7,28

19,567
6fj,6,747

1,321,171
156,120
82,984

$ 1,.183,921
23,€8
5,3Ct

60,179
585,765

s 1,483,921
rl8,504

1,806
36,896

674,332

1,283,451
201,479
161,915

378,73it
84,26S

'l,$799,181
3{n,221

16,392
805,634

35,538

3,477,760

16,501

$ 1,483,921
25,934

35
18,676

783,053

1,372,372
174,812
135,795

63,881
406.,282
87,922
54,581
81,943

3{i8,351
63,&()

914,357
65,536

@
(260,258)

$ 1,513,599
38,136

1,767
3,126

790,23i!

$ 1,574,1/A
68,otrt

63
225

846,276

$ 1,71I,557
41,996

5{)
6,011[

r,0q5,437

1,25$,365
xts,176
154,075

$ 1,804,2€2
21,911

B
500

1,W,sU

1,400,210
188,574
78,871

$ 1,849,38S
15,611

21
28,79

1,127,6S5

1,407,061
117,852
155,457

36,060
335,2n
g!,852
53,924
80,027

340,553
18,934

596,480
81,157

9,124
.lil6,082

86,664
52,740
84,122

389,615
60,076

63/.,U2
77,165

1,345,.li!0
135,315
75,584

2,2#
377,m
103,682
58,973
93,965

367,581
77,806

710,531
24,ffi

@
(45,223'

170,479
417.051
103,St0
61,758
74,715

3/,8,127
71,54i!

883,052
3.161

89,986
416,911
100,239
60,446
78,r61

323,731
55,0d1

911,9l0
3,161

88,431
/152,3A0

100,218
61,667
80,344

M,U2
53,207

995,434
10!1,161

12,2,621
.[70,087
11 1,109
58,878
88,190

3ft,n6
70,351

1,ffi9,288
59,360

112,&O
1162,510

135,972
77,18
90,008

3i|7,913
52,533

1,217,78
79,156

1,231,623
186,529
187,810

1,2:20,U5
171,41
157,194

2,995,706

s!3,888
-fu-?o-50-5-

31.309

16,571

3,739,782

(626,958)

3,588,922

233,189

3,769,750

395,691

4.023.785 4.245-A2A

r[51,(X8 508,307

____J93:El (19,t111 ___lgtf! _JI3E:L !9,!gg} (1g,gg=01 q9,900) (17,5@) (1s,500)(e,228) (1,e49) (8,343) (12F5t -----(e@t ---li5p00-t 
-ito-mt -fifuot -?i€-ffii_$ e24.660_ _g___?e.369_ _s__€7.s6ql _!__3.566_ _$ (26e.ggzl _g__(642.e5sl _!._2r3.!g_ _g_e7s,!gl_ _$_132.519_ _g_soE ggz_

0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% o.o0% o.m% 0.m% o.m% o.oo%

D6bt service as a percantage of
noncapltal ereonditwes

source: Dlstrlct rgcods

Nob: Noncapital ereenditures are total €xp€nditures les8 capttal outay.



Cape May Gity SchoolDistrict
General Fund - Other Local Revenue by Source
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(modified accrual bas.s of acco u nting)

Donations

Exhibit J-5

Total
Building

Use

$ 17,175
16,825
16,603
17,135
16,624

225
225

3,725

$ 88,762

Refund of
Prior Year

Expenditures

$
2,742

43,576
18,393

77
2,901

$ 86.689

FiscalYear
Endinq June 30,

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

Source: District records

Tuition

$ 25,600
30,016
23,489
48,564
25,934
38,136
68;063
41,996
21,911
15,611

$ 339,319

225 19,000

Miscellaneous

$ 211 $

1,368
1,296

8,757

_$_19€99_

lnterest on
lnvestments

$ 10,165
7,O23
5,321
1,790

714
1,767

63
411
523
773

$ 28.s40

$

$

53,151
56,606
88,988
87,240
44,645
43,029
68,351
48,060
22,434
44,366

oo)

9281

$ s56,870



Gape May City School District
Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property,
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year

Ended
June 30, Vacant Land Reaidential Gommetcial Aoartment

Public
Utilities

a
NetValuation

Taxable

$2,239,523,569
2,799,9't4,065
2,791,886,281
2,797,157,881
2,797,672,630
2,795,235,760
2,E06,088,231
2,E13,050,955
2,814,237,746
2,843,406,631

Tax-
Exempt
Promrin

$ 327,747,900
420,382,900
420,630,400
419,13E,600
429,768,200
431,981,900
433.484,900
433,758,300
43i:1,571,800
432,997,700

Total Dircct
School Tax

Rate
b

Exhibit J.6

Estimated Actual
(Gounty Equalized)

Value

$ 2,782,533,630
2,793,454,421
2,8/,8,40/.,511
2,90/,E8/.,78'l
2,812,671,ffi7
2,738,737,235
2,742,474,O25
2,711,1il,182
2,814,237,748
2,E7'1,036,576

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
20't5
2016
20't7
2014

$ 41,926,800
57,139,000
58,125;700
57,451,900
53,163,900
53,2E8,200
04,370,700
62,194,300
61,236,100
66,574,600

$1,722,295,200
2,138,E41,000
2,149,223,600
2,160,163,500
2,168,319,400
2,173,873,900
2,177,186,500
2,1E7,231,OOO

2,193,506,400
2,214,046,300

$ 352,884,200
453,981,300
439,858,800
435,731,100
435,E63,300
431,761r000
430,297,700
429,579,600
427,0/,4,200
4t!'1,67E,400

$ 121,649,800
14E,999,800
143,882,000
143,061,100
139,510,400
135,723,600
133,612,100
133,420,700
131,E38,600
130,479,000

Total Assessed
Value

$2,238,758,000
2,798,961,100
2,791,090,'t00
2,796,407,600
2,796,857,000
2,7946/16;7OO
2,805,467,000
2,8',t2,425,600
2,813,625,300
2,842,7743OO

765,569
952,965
796,181
750,281
815,630
589,060
621,231
625,355
612,446
628,331

$ $ o.(E7
0.053
0.054
0.054
o.054
0.057
o.062
0.065
0.066
0.066

o{

Source: llunicipal Tax Assessor

Real property is required to be assessed at some percentage of true value (fair or market value) established by each county board of taxation.

Reass€ssment occurs when ordercd by the County Board of Ta€tion

a Ta€ble Value of. Maciinery, lmprovements and Equipment of Telephone, Telegraph and Messenger System Companies

b Taxratesareper$100

c lnbrmation not available.

Note:



Gape May Gity School District
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(rate per $1 00 of assessed value)

Overlapping Rates

Exhibit J-7

Total
Direct and

Overlapping
Rate

Fiscal
Year

Ended
June 30,

2009
20't0
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

Note

Basic Rate

General
Obligation

Debt Service Total Direct

Regional
School
District

City of
Cape May

Cape May
Countv

Cape May City School District Direct Rate

$ 0.067
0.053
0.054
0.054
0.054
0.057
0.062
0.065
0.066
0.066

0.067
0.053
0.054
0.054
0.054
0.057
0.062
0.065
0.066
0.066

0.215
0.1 96
0.220
0.237
0.226
o.234
o.215
0.178
0.2'10
0.243

0.320
0.277
0.283
0.294
0.310
0.329
0.339
0.340
0.340
0.350

0.251
0.214
0.227
0.242
0.248
0.245
0.249
0.249
0.268
0.272

0.853
0.740
o.784
0.827
0.838
0.865
0.865
0.832
0.884
0.931

$$ $ $ $

Source: Municipal Tax Gollector

NJSA 18A:7F-5d limits the amount that the district can submit for a general fund tax levy . The levy when added to other
components of the district's net budget may not exceed the prebudget year net budget by more than the spending growth

limitation calculated as follows: the prebudget year net budget increased by the cost of living or 2.5 percent, whichever is
greater, plus any spending grovvth adjustments.

a The district's basic tax rate is calculated from the A4F form which is submitted with the budget and the
Net Valuation Taxable.

b Rates for debt service are based on each yea/s requirements.
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Cape May Clty School District
Principal Property Tax Payes,
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Taxoaver

Congress Hall LLC
Oceanfront Propedies LLC
ADIS lnc.
Ocean Club Hotel CM, LLC
Cape Coachman Realg, LLC
Kejzman Hospitality, LLC
Montreal lnn
Osprey Landing Development Co. LLC
lndividual #1
Palavest, LLC

Total

Source: Municipal Tax Assessor

Taxable
Assessed

Value

$ 28,418,200
2s,310,200
21,787,600
13,000,000
11,989,500
1',1,473,100
10,089,700
9,223,900
8,812,600
8,292,801

$ 148.397.601

o/o of Total
District Net

Assessed Value

1.00%
0.89Yo
0.77o/o

A.460/o

0.420/o

O.40o/o

0.35%
0.32%
O.31Yo

O.29o/o

5.29%

Taxable
Assessed

Value

ExhlbitJ4

% ofTotal
District Net

Assessed Value

1.03Yo

0.91%
0.670/0

O.47Yo

0.42o/o

0.37%
0.35%
0.35%
0.33%
O.31ol"

5.2004

2018 2009

c)
@

Taxoaver

Congress Hall LLC
Oceanfront Properties LLC
ADIS lnc.
Stiatt Corporation
Sandpiper Beach Associates, LLC
CIRJ lnc.
Montreal lnn
Keystone Enterprises lnc.
JPR Enterprises
Cape Motels lnc.

$ 22,972,500
20,379,s00
15,021,600
10,451,900
9,391,100
8,330,200
7,889,700
7,755,800
7,357,800
6,875,600

$ 116.425.700



Cape May City School District
Property Tax Levies and Collections,
Last Ten Fiscal Yearc

Exhibit J-9

Fiscal Year
Ended June

30,

Taxes Levied for
the Calendar

Year

Collected within the FiscalYear
ofthe Levya

Amount
Percentage

of Levy

Collections in
Subsequent

Years

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

$ 1,483,921
1,483,921
1,483,921
1,483,92'l
1,483,921
1,513,599
1,574,143
1,731,557
1,804,282
1,849,389

1,483,921
1,483,921
1,483,921
1,483,921
1,513,599
1,574,143
1,731,557
1,804,282
1,849,389

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

92,483$t

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form)

a School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State Statute,
a municipality is required to remit to the school district the entire property tax balance, in the
amount voted upon or certified prior to the end of the school year.
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Cape May Gity School District
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(dollars in thousands, except per capita)

General
Obligation

Bonds

Unfunded
Pension
Liability

$

Capital
Leases

Bond
Anticipation
Notes (BANs)

$

Percentage of
Perconal
lncome "

Exhibit J-10

Per Gaoita b

Governmental Activities
Business-Type

Activities

Capital Leases Total District

Fiscal
Year

Ended
June 30,

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

$$$ $ 0.00%
0.000/6

0.00%
0.00%
0.00o/o

0.00%
0.00o/o

0.00%
0.00o/o

0.00%

Note: Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements

a Based on Per Capita lncome for Cape May County.

b Based on School District Population as of July 1,

c Not available



Gape May Gity School District
Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(dollars in thousands, except per capita)

General Bonded Debt Outstandino

Exhibit J-{l

Fiscal
Year

Ended
June 30,

General
Obligation

Bonds Deductions

Net General
Bonded Debt
Outstanding

Percentage of
Actual Taxable

Value " of
Property Per Capita b

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None

None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None

None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00o/o

0.00o/o

0.00%
0.00%
O.OOo/o

Note: Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
a See Exhibit J-6 for property tax data.
b Population data can be found in Exhibit J-14.
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Gape May Gity School District
Ratios of Overlapping Governmental Activities tlebt
As of December31,2017

Governmental Unit

Debt repaid with property taxes:

City of Cape May
Lower Cape May Regional School Debt
County of Cape May - City's Share

Subtotal, overlapping debt

Cape May City School District Direct Debt

Total direct and overlapping debt

Note:

Exhibit J-12

Debt
Outstandinq

$ 45,728,113
9,862,000

226,578,595

Estimated
Percentage

Applicable "

Estimated
Share of

Overlapping
Debt

$ 45,728,113
3,897,027

13,248,050

100.000%
39.516%

5.847o/o

o)

62,873,190

$ 62.873.190

Sources: Assessed value data used to estimate applicable percentages provided by the Cape May County Board of Taxation.
Debt outstanding data provided by each governmental unit.

Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the District.
This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and
businesses of Cape May City. This process recognizes that, when considering the District's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the
entire debt burden bome by the residents and businesses should be taken into account. However this does not imply that
every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping payment.

a For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property values.
Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of another govemmental unit's taxable value that is within the
district s boundaries and dividing it by each unifs total taxable value.



Gape May Clty School Dlstrlct
t€gal Debt Maryln lnformatlon,

(&llats ln thousads)

Debt limit

Total net debt applicable b timit

Legaldebt margin

Total n6t debt applic€Ue to the limit
as a perDentage of debt limit

Source:

ExhlbltJ-13

Legal Debt Margin Calculaflon for Fiscal year2oio

Equallzed valuation basis
2015 $ 2,891,611,820
2016 2,851,780,168
2017

TAI

2,828,616,970
t 8.372.008.956

Average equalized valuation of taxable poperty

Debt limit (2.5% of average equatiz€d valuauon)
Net bonded sctlool debt

L€gal debt margin s 69.766.741

201A 2014

$ 67,818,494 $ 68,853,741 $ 69,766,741

TAAI

tBt
tcl

IB4I

$ 2,790,669,852

69,766,741

2017
5

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

s 65,420,810 $ 68,008,390 $ 69,524,581 $ 70,762,990 $ 71,023,034

2014 2015

$ 70,080,55s $ 68,701,450

-s-q94999- -E-egp9!,9e0- -g-qg,e!Egl- -glgJg?g- jr@- -s3,999i!9- -g-89,41j99-

0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% o.0o% o.oo% o.oo%

$ 67.816.494 I 68.853.741 S 6e.766.741

0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Equalized valuation bases were obtained from the Annual Report of the State of Nen, JeB€y,
Departnent of Treasury, Division of To€tion

a Limit set by NJSA 18A:24-1 g br a K through 0 disuict other % limits yvould be applicable for other districts



Cape May City School District
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Exhibit J-l4

Personallncome
Per Capita
Personal

lncome"
Unemployment

Year

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

Source:

Population a b
Rated

3,699.
3,604
3,580
3,568
3,543
3,524
3,504
3,488
3,480

e

43,392
44,398
46,728
48,457
49,250
50,710
53,209
54,865

e
e

12.2o/o

12.8o/o

13.4o/o

14.4o/o

14.60/o

12.9o/o

12.5o/o

1'1.2o/o

10.3o/o

e

$ 160,507,008
160,010,392
167,296,240
172,894,576
174,492,750
178,702,040
186,444,336
191,369,120

e
e

$

a Population information provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Development.b Personal income for Cape May Cig.
" Per Capita for Cape May County.d Unemployment data provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Development.
" Not available.
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Exhibit J-'16Cape May City School Dlstrict
Full-time Equivalent District Employees by FunctionlProgram,
Last T6n Fiscal Years

Functlon/Proonm

lnstruction
Regular
Special education
Other spocial edu€tion
Othsr instruction

Support Servic€s:
Student & instruction relatsd sorvices
School administralivs ssrvicss
Gsneral and businsss administrative services
Plant operations and maintenane
Pupil tEnsportation
Busines and other support seryices

Spscial Schools
Food S€ruice

2009 2010 2011 m12 2013 2014 2ot5 2015 2017 201a

0.3
1.0

14.2
3.5
2-9
2-4

2.5
0.5
2.1
3.0

1.6

14.6
3.5
2.9
2.4

2.O
0.5
2.1
3.0

'1.6

17.6
3.5
2.9
2.4

2.0
0.5
2.1
3.0

1.6

16.6
3.5
2.9
2.4

2.O

0.5
2.1
3.0

1.6

15.6
3.5
2.9
2.4

2.O

0.5
2.1
3.0

1.6

15.6
3.5
2.9
2.4

2.O

0.5
2.1
3.0

1.6

14.6
3.5
2.9
2.4

2.5
0.5
2.O

3.0

1.0

17.2
0.8
7.4
1.7

13.9
o.7
4.5
4.7

18.9
1.0
5.8
'1.6

1.3
1.0
0.5
3.0
0.3
o.4
0.0
't.9

2.7
1.8
2.5
3.0

1.7
1.0
1.3
3.0
0.3
0.8
o.0
1.0

Total

Source: Dislric{ Personnel Re6dsct)



Cape May City School Distrlct
Operating Statlstics,
Last Ten Fiscal Yearc

Fiscal
Year Enrollment

Operating
Exoendituresr

2,914,549
3,293,340
3,348,311
3,442,222
3,713,136
3,736,62r
3,585,761
3,666,589
3,964,405
4,166,670

Cost Per
Pupil

Percentage
Chanqe

Teaching
Staffb

PupilrTeacher
Ratlo

Elementary

1 1.80
10.34
8.32
6.63
6.5.4
7.34
8.06
8.29
8.67
7.74

Average
Daily

Enrollment
(ADE) C

Average Daily
Attendance

(ADA)c

Exhibit J-l7

Student
Attendance
Percentaoe

{

2009
2010
20'11
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

169
176
153
149
142
160
175
188
197
176

169.4
175.9
153.2
143.9
133.6
160.2
'175.2

188.1
196.8
168.1

156.7
163.2
142.4
134.3
125.3
151.5
165.2
178.4
187.4
158.6

17,245.85
18,712.16
21,884.39
23,102.16
26,148.85
23,3s3.88
20,490.06
19,503.13
20,123.88
23,674.26

-17.O1%
8.50%

16.95%
5.56%

13.19%
-10.69%
-12.260/o

4.82%
3.18%

17.64%

% Ghange in
Average Daily

Enrollment

11.96%
3.U%

-12.91%
-6.07%
-7.15%
26.60%
9.36%
7.360/0

4.63%
-14.57%

92.50%
92.78%
92.95%
93.33%
93.79%
94.57%
94.29%
94.82%
95.22%
9431%

18.9
17.2
18.4
21.7
21.7
21.7
21.7
22.7
22.7
21.7

Sourc6: District records

Note: Enrollment based on average daily enrollment.

a Operating expenditures equal total expenditures less debt service and capital outlay.

b Teaching staff includes only full-time equivalents of certmcated staff.
c Average daily enrollment and average daily attendance are obtained from the School Register Summary (SRS).



Cape ilay Gity School District
School Building lnformation
Last Ten Fiscal Years

District Buildino
Elementarv
Cape May City Elementary (1967)

Square Feet
Capacity (students)
Enrollment

Number of Schools at June 30, 2018
Elementary = 1

Source: Distric't Facilities Office
Note: Year of original construc{ion is shorvn in parentheses. Enrollment is based on average daily enrollment.

2009 20{0 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

32,412
275
197

Exhiblt J-18

2018

32,412
275
168

275
153

32,41232,41232,412
275
176

275
't69

32,4'12
275
144

32,412
275
134

32,412
275
188

32,412
275
160

32,412
275
175

@



Cape May Clg School Dlstrlct
Schedulo of Required lllalntenance
Last Ten Yeats

Cape May City Elementary

Projecl # (s)

Total Scfi ool Facilities

UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES - REQUIRED
MAINTENANCE FOR SCHOOL FACILITIES

11{0G261-)oo(

2009
' School Facilities

$ 121,023

N/A

2010

$ 131,#t

N/A

?o11

$ 105,404

N/A

2012

$ 122,351

N/A

2013

$ 123,542

N/A

2014

$ 135,364

N/A

2015

$ 132,525

NI/A

2016

$ 104,586

N/A

2017

$ 127,018

N/A

T-2?.0-i5

?o1e

$ 115,883

N/A

Exhlblt J-i9

Total

$ 1,219,640

N/A

T-TffiT Etglffi- -5---16@- @_@- -S--@ -513256- -t--1oaF86- -$-li35s-- Tt:tdelo-

(o ' Scfiool facilities as defined under EFCFA.
(N.J.A.C. 6A:2G1.2 and N.J.A.C. 6A:26A-1.3)

Source: District records



Cape May City School District
lnsurance Schedule
June 30, 2018

New Jersey School Board Association lnsurance Group -
School Package Policy -

Blanket Real and Personal Property
Blanket Extra Expense
Employee Dishonesty
Environmental
Electronic Data Processing
Errors & Ommissions
General Liability
Business Auto
Workers Compensation

National Union lnsurance Company -
Student Accident
Group Accident

New Jersey School Board Association lnsurance Group -
Public Officials Bond
Business Administrator/Board Secretary

Source: District records

Coverage

Exhibit J-20

Deductible

$ 9,993,556
50,000,000

25,000
1,000,000

80,000
4,000,000
5,000,000
5,000,000
2,000,000

1,000,000
500,000

75,000

1,000
1,000

500
25,000

1,000
5,000

$

50

500
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K-2
INVERSO & STEWART, LLC

Certified Public Accountants

651 Route 73 North, Suite 402
Marlton, New Jersey 08053
(856\9$-n44
Fax (856) 983-6674
E-Mail: rinverso@iscpasnj.com

-Member of-
Americrn Institute of CPAs
New Jersey Society of CPAs

REPORT ON COMPLIAIICE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM A}ID REPORT
oN TNTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUTRED By THE

UNIFORM GUIDANCE AND STATE OF NEW JERSEY CIRCULAR 15.O8.OMB

INDEPEIIDENT AT]DITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Cape May City School District
County of Cape May
Cape May, New Jersey

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program

I have audited Cape May City School District's (School Distict), in the County of Cape May, State of New Jersey
compliance with the types of compliance requirements described n the OMB Conpliance &tpplement, and the Nary
Jersey State Grant Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the School Distict's
major federal and state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. The School District's major federal and state
programs are identified in the Summary of Auditor's Results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and

Questioned Costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal and state statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its
federal and state awards applicable to its federal and state programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the School District's major federal and state
programs based on my audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. I conducted my audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Governnent Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States; audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Departnent of Education, State of New
Jersey, Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Unifoml Administrative Requirements, Cast Principles, and
Audit Requirementsfor Federal Awarcls (Uniform Guidance); and State of New Jersey Circular 15-08-OMB, Single Audit
Policyfor Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid. Those standards, the Uniform Guidanco and State of
New Jersey Circular I5-08-OMB require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal or state prograrn occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the School
Distict's compliance with those requirements and perfonning such other procedures as I considered necessary in the
circumstances.

I believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion on compliance for each major federal and state
program. However, my audit does not provide a legal determination of the School District's compliance.
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K-2
Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

In my opinion, the Cape May City School Distict, in the County of Cape May, State of New Jersey complied, in all
material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on each of its major federal and state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Cape May Crty School Disfrict, in the County of Cape May, State of New Jersey, is responsible for
establishing and maintaining effective internal contol over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing my audit of compliance, I considered the School Distict's internal control
over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal or state
progfitm to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on compliance for each major federal or state program and to test and report on intemal control over compliance
in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and State of New Jersey Circular 15-08-OMB, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Cape May City School Distict's intemal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the desigrr or operation of a control over compliance does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program on a timely basis. A
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal contol
over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal or state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal confrol over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

My consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identiff all deficiencies in internal confol over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. I did not identi$ any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that I
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely tb describe the scope of my testing of internal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance and State of
New Jersey Circular I5-08-OMB. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

INVERSO &STEWART, LLC
Certified Public Accountants

f \*'A '4u t///
Robert P. Inverso
Certifi ed Public Accountant
Public School Accountant No. CS001095

Marlton, New Jersey
January 31,2019
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K-5
Cape May City School District

Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures
of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

I. GENERAL

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance include federal and state
award activity of the Cape May Crty School District ('school Districf'). The School District is defined in Note I to the
School District's basic financial statements. All federal and state awards received directly from federal and state agencies,
as well as federal awards and state financial assistance passed through other government agencies, are included on the
schedules ofexpenditures offederal awards and state financial assistance.

2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are presented using the
bldgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the food service fund, which are presented using
the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are described in Note I to the School District's basic financial
statements. The information inthis schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part200, Uniform A&ninistrattve Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awmds, and State of New Jersey Circular I5-08-OMB, Single Audit Pglicy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants
and State Aid. Thercfore, some afirounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the
preparation of, the basic financial statements. The school district has elected not to use the l0-percent de minimis indirect
cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

3. RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP basis. Budgetary comparison
statements or schedules (RSI) are presented for the general fund and special revenue fund to demonsfiate finance-related
legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant agreement to be recogrrized in the audit year,
whereas for GAAP reporting, revenue is not recognized until the subsequent year or when the expenditures have been
made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis with the exception of the
revenue recognition of the one or more deferred June state aid payments in the current budget yem, which is mandated
pursuant to il.lS,l. 184:22-44.2. For GAAP puposes, payments are not recognized until the subsequent budget year due
to the state deferral and recording of the one or more of the June state aid payments in the subsequent year. The special
revenue fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis which recognizes
encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related trevenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. The special
revenue fund also recognizes the one or mone June state aid payments in the current budget year, consistent with il.lS.l.
I8A:22-44.2.

The net adjustment to reconcile expenditures from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is ($200) in the general fund and
($2,879) in the special revenue fund. See Exhibit C-3, Notes to Required Supplementary Information for a reconciliation
of the budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the general and special revenue funds.

General Fund
Special Revenue Fund
Capital Projects Fund
Food Service Fund

$ 1,542,814
189,869

s 1,035,418
92,128

t49
995

$ 2,578,232
281,997

149
74,51473,519

Total Awards & Financial Assistance $ 1,806,202
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K-5
Cape May City School District

Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures
of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018
(Continued)

4. RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AI\D STATB FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related federal and state financial
r€ports.

5. OTHER

Revenues and expenditures reported under the Food Disfiibution Program represent current year value received and current
year distibutions respectively. The arnount reported as TPAF Pension Contributions represents the amount paid by the
state on behalf of the School District for the year ended June 30, 201 8. TPAF Social Security Contributions reitesents tfte
amount reimbursed by the State for the School District's share of social security contributions for TPAF members for the
year ended June 30, 2018.

6. MAJORPROGRAMS

Major prograns are identified in the Summary of Auditor's Results section of the Schedule of Findings and Questioned
Costs.
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Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:

lnternal control over financial reporting:

1) Material weaknesses identified?

2) Significant deficiencies identified that are

not considered to be a material weakness?

Noncompliance material to basic financial
statements noted?

Federal Awards

lnternal Control over major programs:

1) Material weakness(es) identified?

2) Significant deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be a material weakness?

Type of auditods report on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported

in accordance with 2 CFR 200 section .516 of the Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit

Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance)?

ldentification of major programs:

CFDA Number(sl

CAPE MAY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OI8

Section | -Summary of Auditor's Reeults

Unmodified

yes X

no

none reported

no

no

yes X none reported

Unmodified

X

X

yes

yes

yes

noXyes

84.041

FAIN Number(sl

s041 8170347

N?me of Federal Proqram or Glueter

Aid

Dollar threshold used to distinguish betwwen type A and lype B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X
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CAPE MAY CITYSCHOOL DISTRICT

SGHEDULE OF F|ND|NGS AND QUESTTONED COSTS (CONT'D)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O{8

Section I - Summary of Auditorrs Results (Confd)

Stab Awards Section

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

lntemal Control over major programs:

1) Matedal weakness(es) identified?

2) Significant deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be material ureakness?

Type of audito/s report on compliange for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with NJOMB Circular Letter 15-08 as applicable?

ldentification of major programs:

Stab GranUProiect Number(s)

1

18495-034-51

1&495-034-51

18.495-034-51

yes X no

yes X none reporled

Unmodified

no

Name of State Proqram
State Aid PublieCluster:

School Choice Aid

noyesx

Xyes

Soecial Education Aid

Securitv Aid

AdiustmentAid

Per Puoil Growth Aid

PARCC Readiness

1 Professional Leamino Aid
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CAPE MAY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDTNGS AhlD QUESTTONED COSTS
FOR TIIE FISCAL YEAR EftDED JUIYE 30,2018

Section 2 -- Schedule of Financial Statement Findings

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance related to
the financial statements that are required to be reported in accordance with Governnent Auditing Standards and with
audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Departrnent of Education, State of New Jersey.

No findings identified.
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CAPE MAY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDTNGS AND QUESTTONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Section 3 - Schedule of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance
Findings and Questioned Costs

This section identifies the significanl deficiencies, material weaknesses and instances of noncompliance, including
questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state prograrns, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administatlve Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awqrds (Uniform Guidance) and New Jersey Circular I5-08-OMB.

EEpES.A! AwARpS:

No findings and/or questioned costs identified.

STATE AWARDS:

No findings and/or questioned costs identified.
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CAPE MAY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR.YEAR ATJDIT FINDINGS
AND QUESTIONED COSTS ASPREPARED BY MAI{AGEMENT

This section identifies the status of prior year findings related to the financial statements and federal and state
awards that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 6.12 of Gwemment Audit@ Standards, Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, IJniform Adminisnafive Reqairements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirementsfor Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and New Jersey Circular I5-08-OMB.

NNANCIAL PTATEMENT FINDINGS

There were no prior year audit furdings

FEDERAL AWARDS

Findins #2017-001

Four students reported with disabilities did not have required active individual education plans.

Current Status

The findinghas been corrected.

STATE AWARDS

Therc were no prior year audit findings
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